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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS For the Year ended march 31, 2017 (` in crores)

Particulars Note No. Current Year Previous Year 

I. Revenue from Operations 22 1703.96 1972.49

II. Other Income 23 522.78 137.90

III. Total Income (I + II) 2226.74 2110.39

IV. Expenses :

Employee Benefit Expenses 24 312.46 256.00

Finance Costs 25 246.98 183.37

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 26 373.60 287.65

Other Expenses 27 652.31 746.09

Total Expenses (IV) 1585.35 1473.11

V. Profit Before Tax (III - IV) 641.39 637.28

VI. Tax Expense : 

- Current Tax 28 40.00 34.00

- MAT Credit Utilised 28 - (15.00)

40.00 19.00

VII. Profit for the Year (V - VI) 601.39 618.28

VIII. Other Comprehensive Income :

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

        (a) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (2.14) (1.34)

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

      (a) Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging 
              instruments in a cash flow hedge

(5.31) 1.38

        (b) Movement in Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Reserve 8.58 7.35

3.27 8.73

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Other Comprehensive Income (A (i-ii)+B(i-ii)) 1.13 7.39

IX. Total Comprehensive Income (VII + VIII) 602.52 625.67

X. Earnings per Equity Share : 29

(Face value per share ` 10)

      - Basic `39.89 ` 41.01 

      - Diluted `39.81 ` 40.93 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

First time adoption of Ind AS 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report attached hereto For and on behalf of the Board
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. : 104607W / W100166

Daraius Z. Fraser
Partner
M. No. : 42454

G. Shivakumar
Executive Director & CFO
(DIN : 03632124)

K. M. Sheth
Chairman
(DIN : 00022079)

Bharat K. Sheth
Deputy Chairman & Managing 
Director
(DIN : 00022102)

Cyrus Guzder
Director
(DIN : 00080358)

Jayesh M. Trivedi 
Company Secretary
(M. No. : 2822)

Mumbai : May 5, 2017.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
(` in crores)

Current Year Previous Year 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 641.39 637.28 

Adjustments For :

Depreciation and amortisation expense  373.60  287.65 

Interest Income  (66.52)  (62.34)

Interest expense  246.98  183.37 

Dividend Income  -  (55.57)

Gain on winding up of subsidiary  -  (1.74)

Net gain on investments  (122.66)  (81.90)

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (38.58)  0.70 

Provision for loss on cancelled contract  -  7.84 

Bad debts and advances written off  0.01  0.34 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net)  (2.03)  (3.20)

Revaluation of foreign currency balances  (316.60)  91.38 

Operating profit before working capital changes  715.59 1003.81 

Adjustments For :

(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables 46.47  48.74 

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories  (32.27)  24.69 

(Increase) / Decrease in non-current assets  (13.31)  0.06 

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities  (19.25)  4.34 

Increase / (Decrease) in non-current liabilities  3.14  0.86 

Cash generated from operations 700.37 1082.50

Direct Taxes Paid  (26.08)  (25.19)

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities 674.29 1057.31

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (2057.15) (791.96)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 94.22 183.73

Advances for acquisition of vessel (12.00) -

Sale proceeds of non-current investments  - 45.50

Purchase of current investments (5217.90) (3272.18)

Proceeds from disposal /redemption of current investments 5363.38 3689.45

Withdrawal / (Placement) of deposits with banks (net) 234.37 (319.63)

Dividend received form subsidiaries  - 55.57

Interest received 65.52 67.72

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (1529.56) (341.80)
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(` in crores)

Current Year Previous Year 

C. CASH FLOWs FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings 1931.21 456.33 

Repayments of borrowings (347.93) (710.25)

Dividends paid (54.28) (312.49)

Dividend distribution tax paid (6.30) (48.01)

Interest paid (194.10) (189.29)

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities 1328.60  (803.71)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  473.33  (88.20)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  267.96  338.04 

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents  (15.76)  18.12 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 725.53 267.96

As per our Report attached hereto

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. : 104607W / W100166

Daraius Z. Fraser
Partner
M. No. : 42454

G. Shivakumar
Executive Director & CFO
(DIN : 03632124)

For and on behalf of the Board

K. M. Sheth
Chairman
(DIN : 00022079)

Bharat K. Sheth
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN : 00022102)

Cyrus Guzder
Director
(DIN : 00080358)

Jayesh M. Trivedi 
Company Secretary
(M. No. : 2822)

Mumbai : May 5, 2017.
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NOTES TO Standalone FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Note 1 : Corporate Information
The Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd. (the Company) is a public limited company registered in India under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1913. Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange of India and on the Luxembourg 
Stock Exchange. The Company is a major player in the Indian Shipping industry.

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Policies
a)	Basis of Preparation :

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the 
historical cost convention (except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period) 
on accrual basis to comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.
The Company prepared its financial statements upto the year ended March 31, 2016 in accordance with the requirements of previous 
GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. These are the Company’s first Ind 
AS financial statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2015. The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 
and the opening Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for comparative information. The 
details of First-time adoption exemptions availed by the Company are given in Note 3. Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of 
the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS on the Company’s Equity, Total Comprehensive Income and Statement of Cash Flows are 
provided in Note 3. 
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to 
all the periods presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015 
being the ‘date of transition to Ind AS’. All assets and liabilities have been classified as Current and Non-Current as per the Company’s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services rendered 
and the time between the rendering of the services and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its 
operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current and Non-Current classification of assets and liabilities.
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 
5, 2017.

b)	Basis of Measurement :
These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated.

c)	Use of Estimates :
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management 
of the Company to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements 
and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.
Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of property, plant and equipment, useful lives 
of property, plant and equipment, provision and contingent liabilities.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment :
The Company reviews the carrying value of property, plant and equipment annually or more frequently when there is indication of 
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment :
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This assessment may result 
in change in depreciation expense in future periods.
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Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions other than retirement 
benefits and compensated absences are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to 
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements.

d)	Property, plant and equipment :
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost 
includes expenses related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets, borrowing costs during construction period (net off 
capital subsidy / grant received) and excludes any duties / taxes recoverable.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each reporting date is classified as capital advances under Other Non-
Current Assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under capital work in progress.
Subsequent expenditure relating to PPE are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these 
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenses on maintaining property, plant and 
equipment, including day to day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred except for dry dock expenditure.
Grabs and Dry docks are considered as components of Fleet with estimated useful lives different than the main component of Fleet. 
Cost relating to Dry dock which is mandatorily required to be carried out as per the Classification Rules and Regulations is recognised in 
the carrying amount of the Ship and is amortised from the completion of survey till the estimated date for next special survey.
Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit And Loss.
Exchange differences on repayment and year end translation of foreign currency loans availed upto March 31, 2016 and fair value gains 
or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges that are transferred from Hedging Reserve relating to acquisition of depreciable capital assets 
are adjusted to the carrying cost of the assets.

e)	Intangible Assets :
Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives.

f)	Non-current asset held for sale :
An item of Property, plant and equipment is classified as non-current asset held for sale at the time when the Management is committed 
to sell / dispose off the asset as per Memorandum of Agreement entered into and the asset is expected to be sold / disposed off within 
one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

g)	Investments in subsidiaries :
Non-current Investments in equity shares in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an 
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable 
amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Non-current Investments in Preference Shares in subsidiaries are valued using effective interest rate method.

h)	Inventories :
Inventories of fuel oil are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is ascertained on first–in–first out basis. The cost 
includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

i)	 Borrowing Costs :
Borrowing costs include interest, ancillary cost incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences 
arising from foreign currency borrowings availed on or after April 1, 2016, to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest 
cost. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition / construction of the qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the 
cost of the asset, upto the date of acquisition/completion of construction. Other borrowing costs are recognised in the period in which 
they occur except for transaction costs which are amortised over the period of the loan.
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j)	 Revenue Recognition :	
Income from services : In case of completed voyages, freight and demurrage earnings are recognised fully and in case of incomplete 
voyages, freight and demurrage earnings are recognised prorata on the basis of direct operating expenses incurred as compared to 
total estimated direct operating expenses for the voyage. Charter hire earnings are accrued on time proportion basis except where the 
charter party agreements have not been renewed / finalised, in which case it is recognised on provisional basis.

Interest : Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal amount outstanding and the 
applicable effective interest rate.

Dividends : Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established.

k)	Operating Expenses :
i)	 Fleet direct operating expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.
ii)	Bunker consumption cost, which is part of direct operating expenses, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on consumption.
iii)	Stores and spares delivered on board the ships are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
iv)	Expenses on account of general average claims / damages to ships are written off in the year in which they are incurred. Claims 

against the underwriters are accounted for on acceptance of average adjustment by the adjustors.

l)	 Employee Benefits :
(i)	 Short-Term Employee Benefits :

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. 
Benefits such as salaries, performance incentives, etc., are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss of the year in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii)	Post Employment Benefits :
Liability is provided for retirement benefits of Provident Fund, Superannuation, Gratuity and Leave Encashment in respect of all 
eligible employees and for pension benefit to Whole-time Directors of the Company.

a)	Defined Contribution Plan
Employee benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund, Provident Fund and other Seamen’s Welfare Contributions are considered 
as defined contribution plans and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period when the 
contributions to the respective funds are due.

b)	Defined Benefit Plan
Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity and Pension plan for Whole-time Directors are   considered as defined benefit 
obligations and are provided for on the basis of actuarial valuations, using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the 
Balance Sheet.

c)	Other Long-Term Benefits
Long-term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, 
as at the date of the Balance Sheet. 

Actuarial gain / loss, comprising of experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions is recognised in the 
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income except for Long-term compensated absences where the same is immediately recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Asset Type Estimated Useful Life

Property, plant and equipment :

Fleet (Main)

    - Crude Oil and Product Tankers 20 years

    - Dry Bulk Carriers * 23 years

    - Gas Carriers * 27 years

    - Speed Boats 13 years

Fleet (Component)

    - Grabs 10 years

    - Dry Dock Period from survey certificate date till the estimated date for next special survey

Leasehold Land Lease period

Ownership Flats and Buildings 60 years

Furniture & Fixtures, Office Equipment, etc.* 5 years

Computers

    - Servers and Networks 6 years

    - End User Devices 3 years

Vehicles * 4 years

Mobiles * 2 years

Plant and Equipment * 10 years

Intangible Assets :

Software 5 years

(i)	 Depreciation or amortisation is provided on Straight Line Method basis so as to write off the original cost of the asset less its 
estimated residual value over the estimated useful life. The estimated useful life of the assets are as under : 

m)	Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment and Amortisation of Intangible Asset :

*	 For these class of assets, based on internal technical assessment and past experience, the Management believes that the useful lives as given 
above, best represent the period over which the Management expects the use of the assets. The useful lives of these assets are different from 
the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii)	Estimated useful life of the Fleet and Ownership Flats and Buildings is considered from the year of built. Estimated useful life in case 
of all other assets is considered from the date of acquisition by the Company.

(iii)	Residual value in case of Fleet is estimated initially as amount equal to product of long tonnes and estimated scrap value per long 
tonne based on previous ten years moving average of scrap rates. In case of other assets, the residual value, being negligible, has 
been considered as NIL.

(iv)	The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in 
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

n)	Asset Impairment : 
The carrying amounts of the Company’s property plant and equipment are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine 
the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which impairment takes place. 
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future 
cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, however subject to the increased carrying amount not exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of 
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior accounting periods. 

o)	Foreign Exchange Transactions :

p)	Financial Instruments :
Initial Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement
Financial Assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value through Profit or 
Loss (FVTPL) or fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI), depending on the classification of the financial assets. The 
purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Cash and Cash Equivalents :
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid financial instruments 
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original 
maturities of three months or less.
Fixed deposit having residual maturity upto twelve months from the reporting period is considered as part of bank balances other than 
cash and cash equivalent. Fixed deposit with residual maturity more than twelve months from reporting period is classified under other 
non current assets.

Trade Receivables and Loans :
These assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the 
rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

(i)	 Items included in the financial statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates (the ‘functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency 
of the Company.

(ii)	Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at standard exchange rates determined monthly. Non monetary items, which are 
measured in terms of historical costs denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, remaining unsettled at the year end are translated 
at closing rates. The difference in translation of long term monetary assets acquired and liabilities incurred prior to April 1, 2016 
and realised gains and losses on foreign currency transactions relating to acquisition of depreciable capital assets are added to or 
deducted from the cost of the asset and depreciated over the balance life of the asset; and in other cases, accumulated in a Foreign 
Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account and amortised over the balance period of such long term asset / liability, 
by recognition as income or expense but not beyond March 31, 2020. The difference in translation of all other monetary assets and 
liabilities and realised gains and losses on other foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

a)	Measured at amortised cost : 
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation using EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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b)	Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) : 
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting 
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest income measured 
using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c)	Measured at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) : 
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at 
fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘Other Income’ in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt Instruments : 
Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value 
through Profit or Loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and 
(ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Equity Instruments : 
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Company may, on initial 
recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL. 
The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is recognised 
as Other Income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value 
changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not 
subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised 
as ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in FVTPL 
category. The Company’s trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables 
is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses and reversals are 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers 
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of 
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are 
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in 
‘Finance Costs’.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense 
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees 
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have 
expired. A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of 
the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in 
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments
The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange 
rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps, currency swaps, commodity swaps etc. Further details of 
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 35.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured 
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item. The gains or losses 
on derivative contracts related to the acquisition of depreciable capital assets are added to or deducted from the cost of the assets and 
not recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109 are treated as 
separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts 
are not measured at FVTPL.

Hedge accounting
The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives and non-derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, 
as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, 
along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of 
the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes 
in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. Note 35 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative 
instruments used for hedging purposes.

Fair value hedges
Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged 
risk. The change in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to the 
hedged risk are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the line item relating to the hedged item.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies 
for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss from that date.

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated under the heading of Cash Flow Hedging Reserve. The gain or loss relating to the 
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Amounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity (relating to effective portion as described 
above) are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line 
as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a 
non-financial liability, such gains and losses are transferred from equity (but not as a reclassification adjustment) and included in the 
initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for 
hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity 
and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When a forecast transaction 
is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss .
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(i)	 Provision for current income-tax is made on the basis of the assessable income under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(ii)	Deferred income-tax is recognised on timing differences, between taxable income and accounting income which originate in one 
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods only in respect of the non-tonnage activities of the Company. 
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The tax effect is calculated 
on the accumulated timing differences at the year end based on tax rates and laws, enacted or substantially enacted as of the 
Balance Sheet date. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries where it is expected 
that the earnings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

(iii)	The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred tax 
assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws which is likely to give future economic benefits in 
the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset when the 
asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

	
(iv)	Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the 

Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

q)	Taxation :

r)	Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation 
at the Balance Sheet date.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a 
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

s)	Earnings per share :
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period is adjusted for events, such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue and shares split that have changed the 
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings 
per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

t)	 Government Grants :
Government grants are not recognised until there is a reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached 
to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic 
basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. 
Government grants used to acquire non-current asset are recognized as deferred revenue in the Balance Sheet and transferred to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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Note 3 : First-time adoption - mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect from 1st April, 
2016, with a transition date of 1st April, 2015. The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption 
of Indian Accounting Standards. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are issued and effective for the first Ind 
AS financial statements be applied retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. Accordingly, the Company has prepared 
financial statements which comply with Ind AS for the year ended 31st March, 2017, together with the comparative information as at and for 
the year ended 31st March, 2016 and the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2015, the date of transition to Ind AS.
In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 
101, as explained below. The resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements as 
at the transition date under Ind AS and Previous GAAP have been recognised directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate 
category of equity). This note explains the adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared under previous 
GAAP, including the Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

Mandatory Exceptions from retrospective application 
The Company has applied the following exceptions to the retrospective application of Ind AS as mandatorily required under Ind AS 101:
1.	 Estimates 

On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no 
necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that 
were required under Ind AS but not required under Previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting 
conditions existing as at that date.

2.	Classification and measurement of financial assets
The classification of financial assets to be measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other Comprehensive Income is made on 
the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed on the date of transition to Ind AS.

Optional Exemptions 
1.	 Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment (including ships under construction)(as per Ind AS requirement alongwith Ind AS 

101 exemption)
The Company has used fair value as deemed cost for certain items of Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) in accordance with the 
exemptions available under Ind AS 101 with the resultant impact being accounted for in reserves. The consequent impact on change in 
depreciation is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases where items of PPE have not been fair valued, the Company 
has restated their written down values as per provisions under Ind AS 16 with restrospective effect.

2.	Component Accounting (as per Ind AS requirement alongwith regrouping)
The Company has elected to account dry dock expenditure as a component of Fleet with useful life different than Fleet (Main). The same 
was earlier expensed out in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company has elected to account Grabs as a component of Fleet with useful life different than Fleet (Main). The same was earlier 
accounted under the head ‘Plant and Equipment’.

3.	Long Term Foreign Currency Monetary Items (as per Ind AS 101 exemption)
The Company has elected to continue accounting for exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign currency 
monetary items recognised in the financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS 
financial reporting period as per the previous GAAP.

4.	 Investments in Equity of Subsidiaries (as per Ind AS 101 exemption)
The Company has elected to measure its investments in equity of subsidiaries at the previous GAAP carrying amount as on the date of 
transition to Ind AS i.e. April 01, 2015.
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(i) Reconciliation of equity :

(ii) Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016 :

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Particulars Note As at
March 31, 2016

As at
April 1, 2015

Equity as per previous GAAP : 5203.64 4930.76 

Fair value of assets used as deemed cost on transition A (920.15) (920.15)

Fair value adjustment of financial instruments B 187.87 72.19 

Reversal of proposed dividend provision C - 127.03 

Redeemable preference shares restated at effective interest rate D 65.46 65.46 

Foreign currency translation adjustment on fair value component of fleet E 41.84 41.84 

Impact of change in incomplete voyage accounting F 25.76 25.76 

Others G 7.28 8.62 

Increase in profit as per Ind AS [Refer note (ii) below] 8.38 -

Equity as per Ind AS : 4620.08 4351.51

Particulars Note Year ended 
March 31, 2016

Net profit previously reported under previous GAAP : 609.90

Impact on depreciation and impairment due to fair valuation of certain Property, Plant and 
Equipment and component accounting of dry-dock expenditure

A 192.25 

Mark to market gain / (loss) on derivative transactions B (134.65)

Mutual fund investments restated at fair value B (37.61)   

Impact of preference shares restated to account effective interest rate D (9.12 )

Accounting for incomplete voyage revenue F (0.75) 

Others G (1.74)

Net profit as per Ind AS : 618.28

Other Comprehensive Income 7.39

Total Comprehensive Income 625.67

Notes :
A.	 Property, plant & equipment :

The Group, has used fair value as deemed cost for certain items of Property, Plant & Equipment in accordance with the exemptions 
available under Ind AS 101 with the resultant impact being accounted for in reserves. The consequent impact on change in depreciation 
is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Transition to Ind AS – Reconciliations
The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the transition from Previous GAAP 
to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101 :

(iii) Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows :
       There were no material differences between the Statement Of Cash Flows presented under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP.
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Particulars
As AT April 1, 2015

Aggregate fair value Aggregate adjustments to the carrying amount

Fleet 1300.97 (815.23)

Ships under construction 121.14 (104.92)

Total 1422.11 (920.15)

The aggregate of the fair values used as deemed cost as on the date of transition and the aggregate adjustments to the carrying amount 
reported under previous GAAP are as under :

B.	 Fair value adjustment to financial instruments :
Investment in mutual funds are restated on April 1, 2015 (transition date) at fair value under Ind AS as against accounting at cost or 
market value (whichever is lower) under previous GAAP.  This has resulted in an increase in equity by ` 71.45 crores as on March 31, 
2016 and as on April 1, 2015.
Currency swaps derivative instruments entered against the debt exposure were accounted under previous GAAP adopting hedge 
accounting by matching the offsetting cash flows of the currency swaps against highly probable forecast revenues in foreign currency. 
But due to lack of economic relationship between these two types of cash flows, the said currency swaps derivative instruments do 
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS. Hence, the hedge accounting for the said currency swaps derivative instruments is 
discontinued under Ind AS. Accordingly, the gain or loss on remeasurement of fair values of the said instruments will now be recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Ind AS. This has resulted in an increase in equity by ` 116.42 crores as on March 31, 2016 and 
by ` 0.74 crores as on April 1, 2015.

C.	 Equity dividend including dividend tax :
Under Ind AS, dividend to holders of equity instruments is recognised as liability in the period in which the obligation to pay is 
established. Under previous GAAP, dividend payable was recorded as a liability in the period to which it related. Accordingly the said 
liability recognized under previous GAAP is derecognized under Ind AS as on April 1, 2015.

D.	 Investment in Redeemable Preference Shares :
Investment in preference shares is restated as at April 1, 2015 (transition date) incorporating effective interest rate (EIR) under Ind AS 
as against accounting the investment at cost under previous GAAP. Calculation of EIR takes into account premium on redemption and 
dividend. Interest will be accrued at each quarter end at EIR as against the accounting of dividend and premium on redemption on 
receipt basis under previous GAAP.

E.	 Derivative transactions :
Under Ind AS 109, all derivatives are required to be fair valued through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) unless they are designated as hedging 
instruments and tested for effectiveness. Consequently, USD/JPY swaps which were earlier treated as integral part of JPY loan were 
revalued and the exchange difference on principal was capitalised under previous GAAP, are now treated as derivative instruments 
under Ind AS.

F.	 Incomplete voyage accounting :
Revenues and expenses in respect of incomplete voyages at the end of the accounting period, are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss under Ind AS as detailed in the accounting policies stated above. Under the previous GAAP, the same were recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss only on completion of the voyage.

G.	 Others :
Others comprises of adjustments on account of capitalisation of borrowing costs (` 7.80 crores), capitalisation of dry dock expenditure 
as component of fleet (` 0.82 crores) and Employee Benefits Actuarial loss transferred from the Statement of Profit and Loss to Other 
Comprehensive Income (` 1.34 crores) as at March 31, 2016.
Others comprises of adjustments on account of capitalisation of borrowing costs (` 7.80 crores) and capitalisation of dry dock 
expenditure as component of fleet (` 0.82 crores) as at April 1, 2015.

(` in crores)
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Notes :
a)	On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment at the date of transition 

to Ind AS at their fair values and use those fair values as its deemed cost on the date of transition in accordance with the exemptions 
available under Ind AS 101, the resultant impact being accounted for in reserves. The consequent impact on change in depreciation is 
reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases where items of PPE have not been fair valued, the Company has restated 
their written down values as per provisions under Ind AS 16 with restrospective effect.
The aggregate of the fair values used as deemed cost as on the date of the transition and the aggregate adjustments to the carrying 
amount reported under previous GAAP are as under:

(` in crores)

As at April 1, 2015

Particulars Aggregate fair 
value

Aggregate 
adjustments to the 

carrying amount

Fleet 1300.97 (815.23)

Ships under construction disclosed under Capital Work-in-progress 121.14 (104.92)

Total 1422.11 (920.15)

b)	The ownership flats and buildings include `11,760 (Previous Year : `11,760) being value of shares held in various co-operative societies.
c)	The deed of assignment in respect of the Company’s leasehold property at Worli is yet to be transferred in the name of the Company.
d)	Deductions under Fleet represent vessel acquired and sold on the same day and hence no depreciation has been charged thereon during 

the year ended March 31, 2016.
e)	Other adjustments comprise of fluctuation of the rupee against foreign currencies and losses/(gains) on hedging contracts (including 

on cancellation of forward covers), relating to long term monetary items for acquisition of depreciable capital assets and losses/(gains) 
on forward contracts for hedging capital commitments for acquisition of depreciable assets.

f)	Fleet with a carrying amount of `3012.15 crores (as at March 31, 2016 : `2222.82 crores; as at April 1, 2015 : `2657.15 crores) and 
buildings with a carrying amount of `0.26 crore (as at March 31, 2016 : `0.26 crore; as at April 1, 2015 : `0.27 crore) have been mortgaged 
to secure borrowings of the Company (Refer Note 16). The Company is not allowed to mortgage these assets as security for other 
borrowings or to sell them to another entity, without approval of the lenders / security trustees.

Note 5 : Intangible Assets

Particulars

Cost Amortisation Net Block

As at 
April 

1, 2016

Additions 
during the 

Year

Deductions 
during the 

Year

Other 
Adjustments 

As at 
March 
31, 2017

Upto 
March 
31, 2016

Other 
Adjustments/ 
On Deductions

For 
the 

Year 

Upto 
March 
31, 2017

As at 
March 
31, 2017

As at 
March 
31, 2016

Software 0.39 0.12 - - 0.51 0.12 - 0.09 0.21 0.30 0.27

0.39 0.12 - - 0.51 0.12 - 0.09 0.21 0.30 0.27

Particulars

Cost Amortisation Net Block

As at
April 

1, 2015

Additions 
during 

the Year

Deductions 
during the 

Year

Other 
Adjustments 

As at
March 
31, 2016

Upto
March 
31, 2015

Other 
Adjustments/ 
On Deductions

For 
the 

Year 

Upto
March 
31, 2016

As at
March 
31, 2016

As at
March 
31, 2015

Software 0.39 - - - 0.39 0.04 - 0.08 0.12 0.27 0.35

0.39 - - - 0.39 0.04 - 0.08 0.12 0.27 0.35

(` in crores)

(` in crores)
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note 6 : non-Current Investments

Notes :
a)	During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company wound up its wholly owned subsidiary The Great Eastern Shipping Co. London Ltd.
b)	During the year ended March 31, 2016, the terms of the outstanding 4,45,00,000 preference shares issued by the subsidiary company 

Greatship (India) Ltd. have been modified by increasing the rate of dividend from 7.5% to 21.75% p.a. effective financial year 2015-16  and 
deferring the redemption of the said shares in four equal instalments from April 1, 2021 to April 1, 2024
The subsidiary company has an option of early redemption by providing one month’s notice to the Company. The redemption can be 
in part or in full subject to a minimum of 25 lakhs shares at a time. In case of early redemption, the premium on redemption would be 
determined at such time so as to provide an effective yield to maturity of 7% to the Company. The cumulative redeemable preference 
shares do not contain any equity component.

c)	22.50% 6,06,24,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares are redeemable at a premium of `20 per share in four equal annual 
instalments from April 1, 2018 to April 1, 2021.
The subsidiary company has an option of early redemption by providing one month’s notice to the Company. Early redemption can be in part or 
in full subject to a minimum of 25 lakhs shares at a time. The cumulative redeemable preference shares do not contain any equity component.

Face 
Value 

`

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

No. of 
shares

` in 
crores

No. of 
shares

` in 
crores

No. of 
shares

` in 
crores

Investments in Equity Instruments :
(Unquoted - valued at cost)

Subsidiaries :

- Greatship (India) Ltd. 10 11,13,45,500 1305.14 11,13,45,500 1305.14 11,13,45,500 1305.14

- The Great Eastern Shipping Co.
  London Ltd. of Stg. Pound 10 each
  [Refer Note (a)]

 -  -
 

-
 

 - 16,000 0.26

- The Greatship (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. of
  S$ 1 each 5,00,000 1.15 5,00,000 1.15 5,00,000 1.15

- The Great Eastern Chartering
  L.L.C.(FZC) of AED 100 each 1,500 0.19 1,500 0.19 1,500 0.19

1306.48 1306.48 1306.74

Investments in Preference Shares :
(Unquoted - valued at amortised cost)  

Subsidiary :

- Greatship (India) Ltd.

21.75% Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Shares [Refer Note (b)]

10 4,45,00,000 178.18 4,45,00,000 176.20 5,90,00,000 228.82

22.50% Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Shares[Refer Note (c)]

10 6,06,24,000 195.51 6,06,24,000 195.51 6,06,24,000 195.51

373.69 371.71 424.33

Other Investments :
(Unquoted - valued at cost)

Subsidiary :

- Great Eastern CSR Foundation 10  -  -  -  -  49,999 0.05

 -  - 0.05

1680.17 1678.19 1731.12

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  -  -  - 

Market Value of quoted investments  -  -  - 

Aggregate amount of unquoted 
investments 1680.17 1678.19 1731.12

Aggregate amount of impairment in value 
of investments  -  -  - 
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Note :
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was `172.24 crores (Previous Year : `255.68 crores)

Note :
Mutual Funds aggregating to `152.64 crores (as at March 31, 2016 : `280.02 crores; as at April 1, 2015 : `180.95 crores) of the above have 
been placed under lien with banks for facilities given by them.

note 7 : other assets

note 8 : inventories

note 9 : current investmentS

(Unsecured)

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Other Non-Current Assets Other Current Assets

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

Considered good

(a) Capital Advances 12.00 - - - - -

(b) Security Deposits 1.32 1.11 1.06 0.28 0.93 0.63

(c) Advances to The Great Eastern   
     Chartering L.L.C. (FZC) - a Related Party - - - - 2.99 -

(d) Other Advances 15.82 2.72 2.83 86.64 86.84 79.49

Considered doubtful

(a) Security Deposits 0.44 0.44 0.44 - - - 

(b) Other Advances - - - 0.24 1.93 2.63 

Less : Allowance for doubtful advances (0.44) (0.44) (0.44) (0.24) (1.93) (2.63)

29.14 3.83 3.89 86.92 90.76 80.12 

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Fuel Oils 60.41 28.14 52.83

60.41 28.14 52.83

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Investments in mutual funds : Unquoted (valued at fair value 
through profit or loss) 862.89 885.70 1221.03 

862.89 885.70 1221.03 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments - - -

Market Value of quoted investments - - -

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 862.89 885.70 1221.03 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - - -

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)
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Notes :
i)	 Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoiced amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. Trade receivables 

are considered to be of short duration and are not discounted. The carrying values are assumed to approximate their fair values.
Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Company’s customer base being large and diverse. 
Historical experience of collection of receivables also indicates that credit risk is low. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for 
default on a quarterly basis. Trade receivables are due from customers having high credit quality and strong financials. In determining 
the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss 
allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected 
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables.
The movement in expected credit loss during the year is as follows :

note 10 : Trade receivables
(Unsecured)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Considered good 49.87 91.67 133.91

Considered doubtful 5.60 10.67 13.09

55.47 102.34 147.00

Less : Allowance for Doubtful Receivables (5.60) (10.67) (13.09)

49.87 91.67 133.91

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

(a) Balances with Banks in Current Accounts  725.51 267.94 338.02 

(b) Cash on Hand 0.02 0.02 0.02 

 725.53 267.96 338.04 

Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance 10.67 13.09

Add : Current year allowance 31.98 16.59

Less : Reversal during the year (37.05) (19.01)

Closing Balance 5.60 10.67

ii)	Trade receivables are subject to confirmation, reconciliation and adjustments, if any.

note 11 : Cash and Cash Equivalents
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(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

(a) Deposits having residual maturity upto 12 months 1324.21 1604.89 1160.16 

(b) Balances with Banks - Unpaid Dividend 8.15 9.98 6.58 

(c) Margin Money Deposits 
      (placed with banks under lien against facilities given by the  
       banks.)

126.25 127.03 212.18 

(d) Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 14.33 15.31 11.57 

1472.94 1757.21 1390.49

note 12 : Other Bank Balances

note 13 : current tax assets (net)

note 14 : equity share capital

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Advance Payment of Income-tax and Tax Deducted at Source (net) 57.03 57.37 51.15

57.03 57.37 51.15

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Nos. ` in crores Nos. ` in crores Nos. ` in crores

Authorised :

Equity Shares of ` 10 each 30,00,00,000 300.00 30,00,00,000 300.00 30,00,00,000 300.00 

Preference Shares of ` 10 each 20,00,00,000 200.00 20,00,00,000 200.00 20,00,00,000 200.00 

50,00,00,000 500.00 50,00,00,000 500.00 50,00,00,000 500.00 

Issued :

Equity Shares of ` 10 each 15,11,63,426 151.16 15,11,63,426 151.16 15,11,63,426 151.16 

15,11,63,426 151.16 15,11,63,426 151.16 15,11,63,426 151.16 

Subscribed and Fully Paid :

Equity Shares of `10 each 15,07,77,065 150.78 15,07,77,065 150.78 15,07,77,065 150.78 

Add : Forfeited shares `30,358 
(As at March 31, 2016 : `30,358;
 As at April 1, 2015 : `30,358)

2,518  -  2,518  -  2,518  - 

15,07,79,583 150.78 15,07,79,583 150.78 15,07,79,583 150.78 

a)	Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares :
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of `10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Interim dividend is paid as recommended by the Board of Directors.
In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.
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(` in crores)

b)	Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company :

c)	There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares.
d)	For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared :

i)	 No shares were allotted pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash.
ii)	 No bonus shares have been issued.
iii)	15,45,019 equity shares have been bought back during the financial year 2013-14.

e)	There are no securities convertible into equity/preference shares.
f)	Under orders from the Special Court (Trial of Offences Relating to Transactions in Securities) Act, 1992, the allotment of 2,53,522 (as at 

March 31, 2016 : 2,53,522; as at April 1, 2015 : 2,53,522) rights equity shares of the Company have been kept in abeyance in accordance 
with Section 126(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 till such time as the title of the bonafide owner is certified by the concerned Stock 
Exchanges. Additional 40,608 (as at March 31, 2016 : 40,608; as at April 1, 2015 : 40,608) shares have also been kept in abeyance for 
disputed cases in consultation with the Bombay Stock Exchange.

note 15 : other equity
A. Summary Of Other Equity
(Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement)

B. Nature of Reserves :
i)	 Capital Reserve : Capital Reserve created on cancellation of convertible warrants in financial year 2008-09.
ii)	 Securities Premium Reserve : Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of securities of the Company. The 

reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
iii)	 General Reserve : General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from Retained Earnings for appropriation purposes.
iv)	 Tonnage Tax Reserve : Tonnage Tax Reserve created as per the provisions of the Section 115VT of the Income-tax Act, 1961, whereby 

a minimum of 20% of book profits from the tonnage tax activities are to be utilised for acquiring new ships within 8 years.
v)	 Retained Earnings : Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to General Reserves, 

Tonnage Tax Reserves, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Nos. % holding Nos. % holding Nos. % holding 

Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid

Mr. Bharat Kanaiyalal Sheth 1,57,19,490 10.43% 1,48,28,490 9.83% 1,63,28,490 10.83%

Mr. Ravi Kanaiyalal Sheth 1,52,62,504 10.12% 1,43,62,504 9.53% 1,43,62,504 9.53%

Nalanda India Equity Fund Limited 1,05,24,139 6.98% 1,05,24,139 6.98% 1,05,24,139 6.98%

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

(a) Capital Reserve 15.98 15.98 15.98 

(b) Securities Premium Reserve 86.59 86.59 86.59 

(c) General Reserve 2248.46 2248.46 2148.46 

(d) Capital Redemption Reserve 240.08 240.08 240.08 

(e) Tonnage Tax Reserve under Section 115VT of the Income-tax  
     Act, 1961 270.00 170.00 145.00 

(f) Debenture Redemption Reserve 758.75 167.50 142.50 

(g) Retained Earnings 1405.71 1558.29 1448.45 

(h) Cash Flow Hedging Reserve (Refer Note 35) (7.32)  (2.01)  (3.39)

(i) Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account (7.01)  (15.59)  (22.94)

5011.24 4469.30 4200.73 
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During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Board of Directors declared and paid an interim dividend of ̀  3.60 per equity share aggregating 
to ` 60.58 crores including dividend distribution tax.
In respect of the year ended March 31, 2017, the Board of Directors propose that a dividend of ` 6.50 per equity share be paid on 
fully paid equity shares. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been 
included as a liability in these financial statements. The total outflow on this account is estimated to be ` 117.96 crores including 
dividend distribution tax.
Retained Earnings as at April 1, 2015 (date of transition) includes transfer from Cash Flow Hedging Reserve as detailed in Note (vi) below.

vi)	 Cash Flow Hedging Reserve : The Cash Flow Hedging Reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising 
on changes in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss 
arising on changes in fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated under 
the heading of Cash Flow Hedging Reserve will be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the hedged transaction 
affects the profit or loss.
Currency swaps derivative instruments entered against the debt exposure were accounted under previous GAAP adopting hedge 
accounting by matching the offsetting cash flows of the currency swaps against highly probable forecast revenues in foreign currency. 
The hedge accounting for the said currency swaps derivative instruments is discontinued under Ind AS since said currency swaps 
derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS due to lack of economic relationship between these two types 
of cash flows. Accordingly, the balance in Cash Flow Hedging Reserve pertaining to the said currency swaps derivative instruments 
amounting to ` 914.40 crores as at April 1, 2015 (transition date) is transferred to Retained Earnings.

vii)	Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account : Exchange differences arising on translation of long term foreign 
currency monetary items not related to depreciable assets are transferred to Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference 
Account and shown in the financial statements under Other Equity and amortised over the balance life of such assets / liabilities 
by recognition as income / expenditure, but not beyond March 31, 2020 as per the requirement of notification issued by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs.

C. Other Comprehensive Income accumulated in Other Equity
The disaggregation of changes in Other Comprehensive Income by each type of reserve in equity is shown below :

Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance 7.39 -

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined employee benefit plans (2.14) (1.34)

Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging 
instruments in a cash flow hedge (5.31) 1.38

Movement in Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Reserve 8.58 7.35

Closing Balance 8.52 7.39

(` in crores)
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note 16 : borrowings
(` in crores)

Non-Current Borrowings Current Maturities of 
Long-Term Debt 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

(a) Debentures :

Secured - at amortised cost :

9.80% 2400 (Previous Years : 2500) 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of 
`10,00,000 each redeemable on July 3, 2019
[100 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of `10,00,000 each bought back 
during the year]
[Refer Notes (i) and (iv) below]

240.00 250.00  250.00  -  -  - 

Unsecured - at amortised cost :

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of 
`10,00,000 each -

(i) 8.24% 2000 Debentures redeemable on 
November 11, 2026 200.00  -  -  -  -  - 

(ii) 8.70% 2500 Debentures redeemable on 
May 6, 2026 250.00  -  -  -  -  - 

(iii) 8.24% 2000 Debentures redeemable on 
November 11, 2025 200.00  -  -  -  -  - 

(iv) 8.70% 2500 Debentures redeemable on 
May 31, 2025 250.00  -  -  -  -  - 

(v) 7.99% 2500 Debentures redeemable on 
January 18, 2025 250.00  -  -  -  -  - 

(vi) 7.99% 2500 Debentures redeemable on 
January 18, 2024 250.00  -  -  -  -  - 

(vii) 9.70% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
January 18, 2023 100.00 100.00  100.00  -  -  - 

(viii) 9.70% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
January 7, 2023 100.00 100.00 100.00  -  -  - 

(ix) 9.70%   500 Debentures redeemable on 
April 25, 2021 50.00 50.00 50.00  -  -  - 

(x) 9.70% 1500 Debentures redeemable on 
April 15, 2021 150.00 150.00 150.00  -  -  - 

(xi) 9.70% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
February 2, 2021 100.00 100.00  100.00  -  -  - 

(xii) 9.60% 2000 Debentures redeemable on 
November 10, 2019 200.00 200.00  200.00  -  -  - 

(xiii) 9.75% 2350 (Previous Years : 2500) 
Debentures redeemable on August 20, 
2019
[150 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of `10,00,000 each bought 
back during the year]

235.00 250.00  250.00  -  -  - 
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Non-Current Borrowings Current Maturities of 
Long-Term Debt 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

(xiv) 9.35% 425 (Previous Years : 500) 
Debentures redeemable on February 
8, 2019 and 425 (Previous Years : 500) 
Debentures redeemable on February 8, 
2018
[150 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of `10,00,000 each bought 
back during the year]

42.50 100.00  100.00  42.50  -  - 

(xv) 9.40% 900 (Previous Years : 1000) 
Debentures redeemable on January 6, 
2019

90.00 100.00  100.00  -  -  - 

[100 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of ` 10,00,000 each bought 
back during the year]

(xvi) 9.19% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
December 24, 2018 100.00 100.00  100.00  -  -  - 

(xvii) 9.35% 425 (Previous Years : 500) 
Debentures redeemable on February 
8, 2019 and 425 (Previous Years : 500) 
Debentures redeemable on February 8, 
2018

42.50 100.00  100.00  42.50  -  - 

[150 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of ` 10,00,000 each bought 
back during the year]

(xviii) 9.40% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
January 6, 2018  -  100.00  100.00  100.00  -  - 

[Refer Notes (ii) and (iv) below]

2850.00 1700.00 1700.00 185.00  -  - 

(b) Term Loans from Banks
Secured - at amortised cost :

Foreign Currency Loans from Banks
[Refer Notes (iii) to (iv) below]

908.40 913.43  864.87 330.94 274.44 494.11 

(c) Unamortised Finance Charges (9.93) (7.29)  (6.35) (2.87) (2.66) (3.75)

Total (a + b + c) 3748.47 2606.14 2558.52 513.07 271.78 490.36 

Less: Amount disclosed under Note 19 : Other 
Financial Liabilities

 -  -  - (513.07) (271.78) (490.36)

3748.47 2606.14 2558.52  -  -  - 

(` in crores)
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 Current Borrowings 

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

(a) Term Loans from Bank
Unsecured - at amortised cost :
Loan repayable on demand
[Refer Note (v) below]

170.17  -  - 

 170.17  -  - 

(` in crores)

Notes :
i)	 9.80% 2400 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of ` 10,00,000 each, redeemable on July 3, 2019, are secured by 

exclusive charge on specified ships with 1.25 times cover on the book value of ships and additional security by way of mortgage on 
immovable property of the Company.

ii)	 The Company maintains unencumbered assets (including cash and cash equivalents) of market value not less than outstanding face 
value amount of the unsecured debentures.

iii)	Foreign currency loans availed from banks carry interest rates of LIBOR plus 35 to 150 bps for USD loans and LIBOR plus 62 bps for 
JPY loans. Some loans are on fixed rates basis. The principal repayments are due quarterly, half yearly and annually. These loans are 
secured by mortgage of specified ships and a financial covenant to maintain unencumbered assets.

iv)	The terms of repayments are as under :

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

-  between one to three years

Secured Debentures 240.00  -  - 

Unsecured Debentures 710.00 500.00 200.00

Secured Loans from Banks 307.07 508.66 512.38

1257.07 1008.66 712.38

- between three to five years

Secured Debentures  - 250.00 250.00

Unsecured Debentures 300.00 550.00 750.00

Secured Loans from Banks 317.98 183.79 248.22

617.98 983.79 1248.22

- over five years

Secured Debentures  -  -  - 

Unsecured Debentures 1600.00 400.00 500.00

Secured Loans from Banks 283.35 220.98 104.27

1883.35 620.98 604.27

(` in crores)

v)	 Term Loans from bank shown under current borrowings represent Buyer’s Credit for a minimum tenure of 6 months repayable on 
demand.

vi)	The Company does not have any continuing default in repayment of loans and interest as at the reporting date.
vii)	No loans have been guaranteed by Directors or others.
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note 17 : Provisions

note 18 : Trade Payables

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Non-Current Provisions Current Provisions

As at 
31/03/2017

 As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

(a) Provision for Employee Benefits 
(Refer Note 30)

 28.10  24.96  24.10  15.08  14.86  12.14 

(b) Vessel Performance/ Offhire 
Claims (Refer Note below)

 -  -  -  0.70  1.27  2.82 

 28.10  24.96  24.10 15.78 16.13 14.96 

Note :
The Company has recognised the following provisions in its accounts in respect of obligations arising from past events, the settlement of 
which is expected to result in an outflow embodying economic benefits.

Notes :
i)	 According to the information available with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the ‘Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’, no amount is overdue as at the reporting date, to Micro and Small Enterprises on account 
of principal interest.

ii)	 Trade payables are recognised at their original invoiced amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. Trade payables 
are considered to be of short duration and are not discounted and the carrying values are assumed to approximate their fair values.

iii)	Trade payables are subject to confirmation, reconciliation and adjustments, if any.

Current Year Previous Year 

Vessel performance/ offhire claims -
Provision has been recognised for the estimated liability for under-performance of 
certain vessels and offhire claims under dispute:

Opening balance  1.27  2.82 

Add: Additions during the year  -  - 

Less: Reversed during the year  (0.57)  (1.55)

Closing balance  0.70  1.27 

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

(a) Dues to Micro and Small enterprises  -  -  - 

(b) Dues to Subsidiary Companies (Refer Note 32)  1.84  15.04  1.39 

(c) Dues to others  98.52  104.29  113.03 

 100.36  119.33  114.42 



137

69th Annual Report 2016-17 | Standalone Financial Statements

Note 19 : Other Financial Liabilities

Note 20 : Other Current Liabilities

Note 21 : Current Tax Liabilities (NET)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

(a) Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt (Refer Note 16) 513.07 271.78 490.36

(b) Liabilities towards Investor Education and Protection 
Fund, not due

 - Unpaid dividend 8.15 9.98 6.58

(c) Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 133.52 76.78 47.94

(d) Mark-to-Market Losses on Derivative Contracts 664.28 1025.87 924.31

1319.02 1384.41 1469.19

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

(a) Income Received in Advance  27.97  30.04  22.10 

(b) Other Liabilities  37.39  35.38  35.59 

 65.36  65.42  57.69 

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Provision for taxation (net)  32.42  18.84  18.81 

 32.42  18.84  18.81 

(` in crores)
note 22 : Revenue from Operations

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Revenue from -

- Freight and Demurrage 766.27 1417.15 

- Charter Hire 897.18 523.70 

1663.45 1940.85 

(b) Other Operating Revenue 40.51 31.64 

1703.96 1972.49 
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(` in crores)

note 24 : Employee Benefit Expenses

note 25 : Finance Costs

note 23 : other income 

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Gain / (loss) on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 38.58 (0.70)

(b) Gain / (loss) on Foreign Currency and Derivatives Transactions (net)  290.84  (67.77)

(c) Dividend on Equity shares investment in Subsidiaries (at cost)  - 55.57 

(d) Interest Income -

- on Bank Deposits (at amortised cost) 41.20 36.48 

- on Preference shares investment in a Subsidiary (at amortised cost) 25.29 24.75 

- on Others (at amortised cost) 0.03 1.11 

66.52 62.34 

(e) Profit on winding up of a subsidiary company  - 1.74 

(f) Gain / (loss) on sale of current investments (at FVTPL) 122.66 81.95 

(g) Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances Written Back (net)  2.03  3.20 

(h) Miscellaneous Income 2.15 1.57 

522.78 137.90 

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Salaries and Wages 279.02 229.67 

(b) Contribution to Provident and Other funds (Refer Note 30) 12.41 10.83 

(c) Staff Welfare Expenses 21.03 15.50 

312.46 256.00 

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Interest Cost

Total interest expense  245.35  188.24 

Less: amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets (3.86)  (9.18)

 241.49  179.06 

(b) Other Borrowing Costs 5.49  4.31 

 246.98  183.37 

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Note : 
The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed is 4.76% p.a. (Previous Year : 4.97% p.a.).
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note 26 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

note 27 : other expenses

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 373.51 287.57 

(b) Amortisation of intangible assets 0.09 0.08 

373.60 287.65 

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Fuel Oil and Water 176.72 263.59 

(b) Port, Light and Canal Dues 108.84 120.09 

(c) Stevedoring and Cargo Expenses 0.13 0.43 

(d) Hire of Chartered Ships 50.00 54.36 

(e) Brokerage and Commission 13.05 16.65 

(f) Agency Fees 5.94 6.65 

(g) Consumption of Spares and Stores 121.24 113.40 

(h) Repairs and Maintenance -

- Fleet 49.84 51.61 

- Buildings 4.22 5.92 

- Others 9.40 8.25 

63.46 65.78 

(i) Insurance -

- Fleet Insurance and Protection Club Fees 31.28 30.03 

- Others 0.94 1.03 

32.22 31.06 

( j) (Reversal) / Provision for Loss on Cancelled Contract (7.84) 7.84 

(k) Loss on Cancelled Contract 7.84  - 

(l) Rent 0.10 0.09 

(m) Rates and Taxes 0.49 0.41 

(n) Bad Debts and Advances Written off 0.01 0.34 

(o) Travelling Expenses 34.12 27.63 

(p) Payment to Auditor (Refer Note below) 1.32 1.29 

(q) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility activities 5.84 2.99 

 (r) Miscellaneous Expenses 38.83 33.49 

652.31 746.09 
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Current Year Previous Year

Note :

Payment to Auditor -

- Auditor 0.89 0.77 

- For Taxation Matters 0.27 0.17 

- For Other Services 0.16 0.35 

- For Reimbursement of Expenses (amount less than ` One Lakh)  -  - 

1.32 1.29 

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Current Tax  40.00  34.00 

(b) MAT Credit Utilised  -  (15.00)

40.00 19.00 

note 28 : tax expense
(` in crores)

The Reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in Statement of Profit 
and Loss is as follows :

Current Year Previous Year

Profit before Income Tax 641.39 637.28 

Indian statutory income tax rate 34.608% 34.608%

Expected income tax expense as per Indian statutory income tax rate  221.97  220.55 

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported 
income tax expense :
Tax on Net Profit attributable to tonnage tax activity (net of Deemed Tonnage Income 
chargeable to tax separately)

 (131.45)  (209.36)

Items liable to tax in the year of settlement/payment  (37.70)  38.55 

Income exempt from tax (net of expenses disallowed)  (0.48)  (19.51)

Tax on income at different rates  -  (0.95)

(Gain) / Loss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment / Capital Items Considered 
Separately

 (13.28)  3.00 

Others  0.94  1.72 

Provision for Current Tax as per Books 40.00 34.00 

Pursuant to the introduction of Section 115VA under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the Company has opted for computation of its income from 
shipping activities under the Tonnage Tax Scheme. Thus, income from the business of operating ships is assessed on the basis of the 
Deemed Tonnage Income of the Company and no deferred tax is applicable to such income as there are no timing differences. The timing 
differences in respect of the non-tonnage activities of the Company are not material, in view of which provision for deferred taxation is not 
considered necessary.

(` in crores)
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Current Year Previous Year

(a) Net Profit After Tax (` in crores)  601.39  618.28 

(b) Number of Equity Shares

(i) Basic Earning per Share
     Number of Equity Shares as at the beginning and end of the year 15,07,77,065 15,07,77,065

     Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares during the year 15,07,77,065 15,07,77,065

(ii) Diluted Earning per Share
      Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares during the year 15,07,77,065 15,07,77,065

      Add : Rights Shares kept in abeyance 2,94,130 2,94,130

      Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares during the year 15,10,71,195 15,10,71,195

(c) Face Value of Equity Share ` 10 ` 10 

(d) Earnings per Share

     - Basic ` 39.89 ` 41.01 

     - Diluted ` 39.81 ` 40.93 

note 29 : Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share

Note 30 : Employee Benefit Plans

(` in crores)

A. Defined Contribution Plans :
The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year :

Current Year Previous Year

Contribution to Employees Provident Fund  3.96  3.31 

Contribution to Employees Superannuation Fund  4.32  3.71 

Contribution to National Pension Scheme  0.78  0.61 

Contribution to Seamen’s Provident Fund  0.59  0.42 

Contribution to Seamen’s Annuity Fund  0.70  0.58 

Contribution to Seamen’s Rehabilitation Fund  0.58  0.48 

Contribution to Seamen’s Gratuity Fund  0.09  0.14 

(i)	General description of Significant Defined Contribution Plans :
Provident Fund :
In accordance with Indian law, all eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined 
contribution plan in which both the employee and employer (at a determined rate) contribute monthly. The Company contributes as 
specified under the law to the Provident Fund where set up as a trust is liable for future provident fund benefits to the extent of its annual 
contribution and any shortfall in fund assets based on government specified minimum rates of return relating to current period service 
and recognises such contributions and shortfall, if any, as an expense in the year incurred. There is no deficiency in the interest cost 
as the present value of the expected future earnings on the fund is greater than the expected amount to be credited to the individual 
members based on the expected guaranteed rates of interest.

Seamen’s Provident Fund :
The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund in respect of seamen i.e. crew who sail on Company’s ships is paid to the Seamen’s 
Provident Fund as per the National Maritime Board Agreement.
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Seamen’s Annuity Fund :
The Company’s contribution towards Annuity in respect of seamen is paid to the Seamen’s Annuity Fund as per the National Maritime 
Board Agreement.

Seamen’s Rehabilitation Fund :
The Company’s contribution towards rehabilitation in respect of seamen is paid to the National Maritime Board Rehabilitation and 
Welfare Trust as per the National Maritime Board Agreement.

Seamen’s Gratuity Fund :
The Company’s contribution towards Gratuity in respect of seamen is paid to the Seafarer’s Welfare Fund Society as per the National 
Maritime Board Agreement.

Superannuation Fund :
In addition to gratuity benefits, employees have the option to become a member of the Superannuation Fund Trust set up by the 
Company and receive benefits thereunder. It is a defined contribution plan. The Company makes contributions to the trust in respect of 
the said employees until their retirement or resignation. The Company recognises such contributions as an expense when incurred. The 
Company has no further obligation beyond its contribution.

National Pension Scheme (NPS) :
NPS is an additional option for offering retirement benefits to the employees. NPS is designed on defined contribution basis wherein the 
Company contributes to the employees account. 
There is no defined benefit that would be available at the time of exit from the system and the accumulated wealth depends on the 
contributions made and the income generated from the investment of such wealth. The Company recognises such contributions as an 
expense when incurred. The Company has no further obligation beyond its contribution.

B. Defined Benefit Plans and Other Long Term Benefits :
Valuations in respect of Gratuity, Pension Plan for Whole-time Directors and Leave Encashment have been carried out by an independent 
actuary as at the Balance Sheet date under the Projected Unit Credit method, based on the following assumptions :

Actuarial 
Assumptions 

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

 As at 
31/03/2017 

 As at 
31/03/2016 

 As at 
01/04/2015 

 As at 
31/03/2017 

 As at 
31/03/2016 

 As at 
01/04/2015 

 As at 
31/03/2017 

 As at 
31/03/2016 

 As at 
01/04/2015 

(a) Discount Rate (p.a.) 6.69% 7.69% 7.80% 6.69% 7.69% 7.80% 6.69% 7.69% 7.80%

(b) Salary Escalation 
Rate

4.00%-
6.00%

4.00%-
6.00%

4.00%-
6.00% - - - 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

(c) Mortality IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

(d) Withdrawal Rate 0.50%-
5.67%

0.50%-
8.00%

0.50%-
7.00% - - -

0.67%-
5.67%

1.33%-
8.00%

1.33%-
7.00%

(e) Expected average 
remaining service 
(in years)

 10.71-
24.05 

 9.54-
24.25 

 9.74-
24.28  -  -  -  10.04  8.08  8.38 
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(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

Current Year Previous year Current Year Previous year Current Year Previous year

Liability at the beginning of 
the year  19.12  17.20  23.94  23.27  1.20  1.04 

Current Service Cost  1.70  1.82  -  -  0.84  0.84 

Interest Cost  1.46  1.28  1.78  1.75  0.09  0.06 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on 
obligations  1.13  0.26  2.48  0.61  (0.57)  (0.13)

Benefits Paid  (0.41)  (1.50)  (1.69)  (1.69)  (0.02)  (0.62)

Benefits Transferred in  0.02  0.06  -  -  -  0.01 

Liability at the end of the year  23.02  19.12  26.51  23.94  1.54  1.20 

(i)	 Changes in present value of obligations :

(ii)	 Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets :

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

Current Year Previous year Current Year Previous year Current Year Previous year

Fair Value of Plan Assets at 
the beginning of the year  20.22  19.53  -  -  -  - 
Adjustment to Opening 
Balance  (0.13)  (0.07)  -  -  -  - 
Return on Plan Assets 
excluding amount included in 
interest income  1.43  (0.43)  -  -  -  - 
Interest Income  1.54  1.51  -  -  -  - 
Employer’s Contributions  0.20  1.18  1.69  1.69  0.02  0.62 
Benefits Paid  (0.41)  (1.50)  (1.69)  (1.69)  (0.02)  (0.62)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at 
the end of the year  22.85  20.22  -  -  -  - 

(` in crores)
(iii)	 Funded Status :

Gratuity

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation  23.02  19.12  17.20 

Fair value of plan assets  (22.85)  (20.22)  (19.53)

(Surplus) / Deficit of Plan assets over obligations  0.17  (1.10)  (2.33)
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Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

Current 
Year

Previous 
year

Current 
Year

Previous 
year

Current 
Year

Previous 
year

(Gain) / loss on obligation due to change in 
demographic assumptions  (0.06)  -  -  -  -  - 

(Gain) / loss on obligation due to change in financial 
assumptions  1.85  0.16  -  -  0.07  0.01 

(Gain) / loss on obligation due to change in experience 
adjustments  (0.66)  0.10  2.48  0.61  (0.64)  (0.14)

Total Actuarial (gain) / loss  1.13  0.26  2.48  0.61  (0.57)  (0.13)

Gratuity

Current 
Year

Previous 
year

Return on Plan Assets excl. interest Income  1.43  (0.43)

Interest Income  1.54  1.51 

Actual Return on Plan Assets  2.97  1.08 

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(iv)	 Remeasurement of the net defined liability / (asset) :

(v)	 Actual Return on Plan Assets :

(vi)	 Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet :
(` in crores)

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

 As at 
31/03/2017 

 As at 
31/03/2016 

 As at 
01/04/2015 

 As at 
31/03/2017 

 As at 
31/03/2016 

 As at 
01/04/2015 

 As at 
31/03/2017 

 As at 
31/03/2016 

 As at 
01/04/2015 

Liability at the end 
of the year  23.02  19.12  17.20  26.51  23.94  23.27  1.54  1.20  1.04 

Fair Value of Plan 
Assets at the end of 
the year  22.85  20.22  19.53  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Amount not 
recognised in the 
Balance Sheet
Sheet  -  -  0.11  -  -  -  -  - 

(Asset) / liability 
recognised in the 
Balance Sheet
Sheet (net)  0.17  (1.10)  (2.22)  26.51  23.94  23.27  1.54  1.20  1.04 
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Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

Current 
Year

Previous 
year

Current 
Year

Previous 
year

Current 
Year

Previous 
year

Current Service Cost  1.70  1.82  -  -  0.84  0.84 

Net Interest  (0.08)  (0.23)  1.78  1.75  0.09  0.06 

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognised  -  -  -  -  (0.57)  (0.13)

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  1.62  1.59  1.78  1.75  0.36  0.77 

(` in crores)
(vii)	 Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss :

(viii)	General Description of Significant Defined Benefit Plans :
Gratuity Plan :
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death, permanent disablement or resignation in terms 
of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Company’s Scheme whichever is more beneficial. Benefit would be paid 
at the time of separation based on the last drawn basic salary.
The Company’s investment strategy in respect of its funded plans is implemented within the framework of the applicable statutory 
requirements. The plans expose the Company to a number of actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity 
risk and inflation risk. The Company does an Asset - Liability matching study each year  in which the consequences of the strategic 
investment policies are analysed in terms of risk and return profiles.

Retirement Benefit Scheme including Pension Plan :
Under the Company’s Retirement Benefit Scheme for the Whole-time Directors, all the eligible Whole-time Directors are entitled to 
the benefits of the scheme only after attaining the age of 62 years, except for retirement due to physical disability or death while in 
office, in which case, the benefits shall start on his retirement due to such physical disability or death. The benefits are in the form 
of monthly pension @ 50% of his last drawn monthly salary subject to maximum of ` 1.25 crores p.a. (Previous Year : ` 1.25 crores 
p.a.) during his lifetime. If he predeceases the spouse, she will be paid monthly pension @ 50% of his last drawn pension during her 
lifetime. Benefits include reimbursement of medical expenses for self and spouse, overseas medical treatment upto ` 0.50 crore for 
self / spouse, office space including office facilities in the Company’s office premises. Benefits also include use of Company’s car 
including reimbursement of driver’s salary and other related expenses during his lifetime and in the event of his demise, his spouse 
will be entitled to avail the said benefit during her lifetime.

Leave Encashment :
All eligible union grade employees had an option to freeze the accumulated leave balance as on June 30, 2008. Such frozen 
accumulated leave balance will be encashed as per the last drawn basic salary at the time of superannuation, death, permanent 
disablement, resignation or promotion to the non-union category. 
With effect from April 1, 2012, all eligible non-union employees have an option to freeze their leave accumulation days on 30th June 
every year and such frozen accumulated leave balance will be encashed as per the basic salary for the month of June of the relevant 
year for which leave was frozen at the time of superannuation, death, permanent disablement or resignation.
For all union and non-union grade employees, maximum leave that can be carried forward is 15 days.
The leave over and above 15 days is encashed and paid to employees on June 30th of every year.
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note 31 : Segment information
The Company is considered to be a single segment company engaged in shipping business. Consequently, the Company has in its 
primary segment only one reportable business segment. As per Ind AS 108, ‘Operating Segments’ if a single financial report contains 
both consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements of the parent, segment information needs to be presented 
only on the basis of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, information required to be presented under Ind AS 108, ‘Operating 
Segments’ has been given in the consolidated financial statements.

(` in crores)
(ix)	 The fair values of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows :

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Central Government securities  0.39  0.53  0.66 

State Government securities  -  0.08  0.08 

Public Sector Bonds  1.00  1.00  1.49 

HDFC Group Unit Linked Plan  21.46  18.61  17.30 

Total  22.85  20.22  19.53 

(x)	 Sensitivity Analysis :

Present Value of Obligations
Discount Rate Salary Escalation Rate

+1% -1% +1% -1%

Gratuity  21.12  25.08  24.28  21.79 

Pension  24.44  28.92  -  - 

Leave Encashment  1.44  1.63  1.63  1.44 

(` in crores)

(` in crores)
(xi)	 The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year ended March 31, 2017 as follows :

Present Value of 
Obligations

First 
Year

Second 
Year

Third 
Year

Fourth 
Year

Fifth 
Year

Six to Ten 
Years

Gratuity  3.43  2.20  2.28  2.22  2.24  7.21 

Pension  1.69  1.69  1.69  1.69  1.69  8.47 

Leave Encashment  1.08  0.10  0.25  0.11  0.09  0.01 



147

69th Annual Report 2016-17 | Standalone Financial Statements

note 32 : RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(I) List of Related Parties

(a) Parties where control exists : 

Subsidiary Companies :

The Great Eastern Shipping Co. (London) Ltd. (wound up as at March 31, 2016)

The Greatship (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

The Great Eastern Chartering L.L.C. (FZC) and its subsidiary :

-  The Great Eastern Chartering (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Great Eastern CSR Foundation, India

Greatship (India) Ltd., India and its subsidiaries :

-  Greatship Global Holdings Ltd., Mauritius

-  Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd., Singapore

-  GGOS Labuan Ltd., Malaysia. (deregistered on March 4, 2017)

-  Greatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd., Singapore.

-  Greatship (UK) Ltd., UK.

-  Greatship Oilfield Services Ltd., India (incorporated on July 9, 2015)

(b) Key Management Personnel and close members of their family in employment with the Company as at March 31, 2017 :

Mr. K. M. Sheth - Non - Executive Chairman;

- Father of Mr. Bharat K. Sheth and Mr. Ravi K. Sheth

Mr. Bharat K. Sheth - Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Tapas Icot - Executive Director and President-Shipping

Mr. G. Shivakumar - Executive Director and CFO

Mr. Jayesh Trivedi - Company Secretary

Mr. Ravi K. Sheth - Non - Executive Director (w.e.f. April 1, 2015);

- Son of Mr. K. M. Sheth and brother of Mr. Bharat K. Sheth

Mr. Berjis Desai - Non - Executive Director

Mr. Cyrus Guzder - Non - Executive Director

Mr. Farrokh Kavarana - Non - Executive Director

Mrs. Rita Bhagwati - Non - Executive Director

Dr. Shankar Acharya - Non - Executive Director

Mr. Vineet Nayyar - Non - Executive Director

Mr. Rahul R. Sheth - Son of Mr. Ravi K. Sheth

(c) Other related parties :

Employees’ Benefit Plans :

The Provident Fund of The Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd

The Great Eastern Shipping Co Ltd Employees Gratuity Fund

The Great Eastern Shipping Co Limited Executives Superannuation Fund

The Great Eastern Shipping Co Ltd Floating Staff Superannuation Fund

The Great Eastern Shipping Co Ltd Staff Superannuation Fund
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Nature of Transactions

Subsidiary 
Companies 

Other Related 
Parties 

Key Management 
Personnel and their 

close family members

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Services received from
- The Greatship (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

` 5.72 crores (Previous year : ` 6.43 
crores)

- The Great Eastern Chartering L.L.C. (FZC)
` 41.83 crores (Previous year : ` 55.94  
crores)

 47.55  62.37  -    -    -    -   

Reimbursement of expenses from
- The Great Eastern Chartering L.L.C. (FZC)

 0.98  3.69  -    -    -    -   

Interest / Dividend income
- Greatship (India) Ltd. 

` 23.32 crores (Previous year : ` 68.17 
crores)

- The Great Eastern Shipping Co. London    
Ltd., U.K.̀  Nil (Previous year : ` 5.46 
crores)

 23.32  73.63  -    -    -    -   

Services rendered to
- Greatship (India) Ltd. 

 2.07  1.21  -    -    -    -   

Contribution towards CSR 
- Great Eastern CSR Foundation

 5.84  2.99  -    -    -    -   

Part redemption of preference shares in
- Greatship (India) Ltd. 

 -    59.31  -    -    -    -   

Transfer of share capital amount on 
winding up
- The Great Eastern Shipping Co. 

London Ltd., U.K.

 
-    2.00 

 -    -    -    -   

Transfer of liability towards retirement 
benefits of employees from
- Greatship (India) Ltd.

 
0.02 

 
0.07 

 -    -    -    -   

Contribution to employees post 
employment benefit plans  -    -    8.11  7.76  -    -   

Compensation to key management 
personnel and close members of their 
family
- Short-term benefits  -    -    -    -    8.91  8.20 

- Post-employment benefits 
  [Refer Note (ii) below]

 -    -    -    -    3.91  1.68 

- Sitting Fees paid  -    -    -    -    0.31  0.18 

- Commission paid  -    -    -    -    8.03  8.56 

- Dividend paid  -    -    -    -    11.93  9.48 

(` in crores)

(II)  Transactions with Related Parties

(a)
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(` in crores)

(b)
Outstanding 

balances

Subsidiary 
Companies 

Other Related 
Parties

Key Management 
Personnel and their 

close family members

As at
31/03/2017

As at
31/03/2016

As at
01/04/2015 

As at
31/03/2017

As at
31/03/2016

As at
01/04/2015 

As at
31/03/2017

As at
31/03/2016

As at
01/04/2015

Receivables
 - Greatship (India) Ltd.

 1.64  0.69  0.15  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Advances
 - The Great Eastern
   Chartering L.L.C.  

(FZC)

 -    2.99  -    -    -    -    -    -   -

Payables  1.84  15.04  1.39  -    -    -    -    -     -  

- The Greatship
  (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

` 0.93 crore 
(As at March 31, 2016 : ` 
0.43 crore);   
(As at April 1, 2015 : ` 
1.16 crores)

- The Great Eastern
   Chartering L.L.C. (FZC)

` 0.91 crore 
(As at March 31, 2016 : ` 
14.61 crores);
(As at April 1, 2015 : ` 
0.23 crore)

- Employees post
   employment benefit plans

 -    -    -    0.65  0.22  0.27  -    -    - 

- Commission payable  -    -    -    -    -    -    8.03  8.56  6.52

- Provision for retirement
  benefits

 -    -    -    -    -    -    26.51  23.95  23.27

Financial Guarantee 
given 
 - Greatship (India) Ltd.

 -    -    14.57  -    -    -    -    -    -  

Notes :
i)	 During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company transferred Served from India Scheme (SFIS) License worth ` 1.00 crore to its 

wholly owned subsidiary Greatship (India) Ltd.
ii)	 The above includes, provision for retirement pension benefits payable ̀  2.68 crores (Previous year : ` 0.57 crore) on the basis of actuarial 

valuation as per the revised Retirement Benefits Scheme approved by the Board of Directors.
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Sr. No. Particulars  As at 
31/03/2017 

 As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts :

(a) Sales Tax demands under BST Act, CST Act and VAT Act 
against which the Company has preferred appeals.  7.46  7.46  7.46 

(b) Demand from the Office of the Collector & District 
Magistrate, Mumbai City and from Brihanmumbai 
Mahanagarpalika towards transfer charges for transfer of 
premises not acknowledged by the Company.  4.34  4.34  4.34 

(c) Demand for Custom Duty disputed by the Company
[The Company has given bank guarantees amounting to 
` 3.63 crores (as at March 31, 2016 : ` 3.63 crores; as at 
April 1, 2015 : ` 3.63 crores) against the said Custom Duty 
demand].

 6.50  7.29  7.29 

(d) Service Tax Demands disputed by the Company.  -  4.75  4.75 

(e) Income Tax Demands for various Assessment Years 
disputed by the Company.  34.80  23.46  3.02 

(f) Demand for wharfage charges against which the Company 
has tendered a bank guarantee. Stay obtained under a Writ 
Petition filed against Chennai Port Trust for restraining 
encashment of bank guarantee.  0.99  0.99  0.99 

Guarantees :

(a) Guarantees given to banks on behalf of subsidiaries.  -  -  14.57

note 33 : Capital and Other Commitments 
Estimated amount of contracts, net of advances paid thereon amounting to ` 12.76 crores (Previous Year : ` 134.19 crores), remaining to 
be executed on capital account and not provided for ` 48.48 crores (Previous Year : ` 480.32 crores).

note 34 : Contingent Liabilities

Notes :
i)	 It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the 

respective proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.
ii)	The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
iii)	The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims pertaining to proceedings pending with Income Tax, Custom, Sales tax/VAT, 

Service Tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided 
for where provisions were required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company 
does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial results.

(` in crores)
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Note 35 : Financial Instruments
The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and 
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instruments are disclosed in Note 2(p) to 
the financial statements :

(` in crores)

A. Financial Assets and Liabilities :
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as follows :

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Financial Assets :

Measured at Cost

- Investments in subsidiaries

- Equity Shares and other investment 1306.48 1306.48 1306.79

Measured at Amortised Cost

- Investments in subsidiaries

- Preference shares 373.69 371.71 424.33

- Trade Receivables 49.87 91.67 133.91

- Cash and Cash Equivalents 725.53 267.96 338.04

- Other Bank Balances 1472.94 1757.21 1390.49

Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss

- Investments in Mutual Funds 862.89 885.70 1221.03

Total 4791.40 4680.73 4814.59

Financial Liabilities :

Measured at Amortised Cost

- Non-Current Borrowings 3748.47 2606.14 2558.52

- Current Borrowings 170.17  -  - 

- Trade Payables 100.36 119.33 114.42

- Other Financial Liabilities 654.74 358.54 544.88

Derivative instruments in hedging relationship

- Interest Rate Swaps 5.79 2.24 4.89

- Forward  Buy Contracts 2.03  -  - 

- Bunker Hedging  -  - 0.13

Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship

- Other Financial Liabilities 656.46 1023.63 919.29

Total 5338.02 4109.88 4142.13

Carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade payables as at March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 
approximate the fair values because of their short term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of other bank balances, 
borrowings, and other financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost is not significant in each of the years presented.
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(` in crores)

B. Fair value hierarchy :
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or 
unobservable and consists of the following three levels :
 > Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
 > Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
 prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
 > Level 3 - Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using 
 a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same 
 instrument nor are they based on available market data.
The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Financial Assets : 

Measured at Level 2

- Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss

- Investments in Mutual Funds 862.89 885.70 1221.03

Total 862.89 885.70 1221.03

Financial Liabilities : 

Measured at Level 2

- Derivative instruments in hedging relationship

- Interest Rate Swaps 5.79 2.24 4.89

- Forward  Buy Contracts 2.03  -  - 

- Bunker Hedging  -  - 0.13

- Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship

- Other Financial Liabilities 656.46 1023.63 919.29

Total 664.28 1025.87 924.31

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts, currency and interest rate swaps and options to hedge its exposure to the 
movements in foreign exchange rates. The use of these foreign exchange forward contracts, currency and interest rate swaps and options 
reduces the risk or the cost to the Company and the Company does not use foreign exchange forward contracts, currency and interest rate 
swaps and options for trading or speculation purposes.

The Company has identified certain derivative contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of firm commitments and highly 
probable forecast transactions and the interest rate swaps as hedged instruments that qualify as effective cash flow hedges. The mark-
to-market gain / (loss) on such derivative contracts is recorded in the Hedging Reserve.

The Company also uses commodity futures contracts for hedging the exposure to bunker price risk.
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(i)	 Derivative instruments in hedging relationship (Cash Flow Hedges)
(a) Commodity Futures Contracts for Import of Bunker :

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total No. of contracts outstanding  -  -  -  -  4  - 
No. of units in MT under above 
contracts  -  -  -  - 12000.00  - 

Amount recognised in Hedging 
Reserve (loss) / gain (` in crores)  -  -  -  -  (0.13)  - 

Maturity Period  -  -  -  -  Upto 1 Year  - 

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total No. of contracts outstanding  6  -  -  -  -  - 
Foreign Currency Value (USD in 
million)  13.700  -  -  -  -  - 

Amount recognised in Hedging 
Reserve (loss) / gain (` in crores)  (2.03)  -  -  -  -  - 

Maturity Period  Upto 1 Year  -  -  -  -  - 

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total No. of contracts outstanding  1  -  1  -  -  - 
Foreign Currency Value (USD in 
million)

 9.664  -  2.007  -  -  - 

Amount recognised in Hedging 
Reserve (loss) / gain (` in crores) 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

Maturity Period  Upto 1 month  -  Upto 1 month  -  -  - 

(b) Interest Rate Swap Contracts :

Details As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Total No. of contracts outstanding  5  2  5 

Principal Notional Amount (USD in million)  77.520  22.800  47.568 

Amount recognised in Hedging Reserve (loss) / gain (` in crores)  (5.29)  (2.01)  (3.26)

Maturity Period  Upto 7 Years  Upto 3 Years  Upto 4 Years 

(c) Forward Exchange Contracts :

(d) Spot Currency Contracts :

The derivative contracts mentioned under ‘(i) Derivative instruments in hedging relationship (Cash flow Hedges) above, having been 
entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of firm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions and the interest rate swaps and 
forward exchange contracts have been designated as hedged instruments that qualify as effective cash flow hedges. The mark-to-market 
loss on these foreign exchange derivative contracts outstanding as at March 31, 2017,  amounting to ` 7.32 crores (as at March 31, 2016 : 
` 2.01 crores; as at April 1, 2015 : ` 3.39 crores) has been recorded in the Cash Flow Hedging Reserve.
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The interest rate swaps are entered into to hedge the floating monthly, quarterly and half yearly interest payments on borrowings. Fair value 
gains / (losses) on the interest rate swaps recognised in the Cash Flow Hedging Reserve are transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
as part of interest expense over the period of borrowings.
Gains / (losses) on forward exchange contracts and spot currency contracts recognised in the Cash Flow Hedging Reserve are transferred 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss on the occurrence of the underlying cash flow, except for forwards used to hedge highly probable 
forecast foreign currency purchases relating to construction of new vessels, whose gains / (losses) are included in the cost of the assets 
and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the estimated useful lives as part of depreciation expense.

(ii)	Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship
(a) Currency Swap Contracts (JPY to USD) :

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total No. of contracts outstanding  -  2  -  3  -  1 
Foreign Currency Value (USD in 
million)  -  20.000  -  30.000  -  12.000 

Gain / (loss) recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the year (` in crores) 

 5.72  1.45 

Maturity Period  - Upto 1 year  -  Upto 1 year    

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total No. of contracts outstanding  -  -  -  7.00  -  12.00 
Foreign Currency Value (USD in 
million)  -  -  -  19.000  -  60.000 

Gain / (loss) recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the year (` in crores) 

 -  -  1.26  

Maturity Period  -  -  -  Upto 1 Year   

(b) Currency Swap Contracts (INR to USD) :

(c) Forward Exchange Option Contracts :

(d) Forward Exchange Contracts :

Details Currency As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Total No. of contracts outstanding 1 2 3 

Principal Notional Amount (JPY in million) JPY/USD 1148.500 2171.103 4890.307 

Gain / (loss) recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss during the year (` in crores) 1.65 9.65

Maturity Period Upto 1 Year Upto 2 Years

Details Currency As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Total No. of contracts outstanding 35 13 13 

Principal Notional Amount (` in crores) INR/USD 3020.00 1700.000 1700.000 

Gain / (loss) recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss during the year (` in crores) 320.07 (120.97)

Maturity Period Upto 10 Years Upto 7 Years
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The currency swap derivative contracts, forward exchange option contracts and forward exchange contract mentioned under ‘(ii) Derivative 
instruments not in hedging relationship’ above, economically hedge the underlying exposures but hedge accounting is not opted for the same.
The currency swap derivative contracts were entered into to economically hedge the JPY and INR debt by converting the same into USD 
liability.
The forward exchange option contracts and forward exchange contract were entered into to hedge highly probable forecast transactions 
denominated in foreign currency.
Gains / losses on the derivative contracts mentioned under (ii) above, are transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The mark-to-
market gain on these derivative contracts outstanding as at March 31, 2017 amounting to `327.44 crores (as at March 31, 2016 : loss of 
` 108.61 crores) has been recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Market risk :
(i)	 Foreign currency risk

Since the majority of the revenues of the Company are denominated in US dollars, there is a translation risk as the Company has 
to report its financial performance in INR. A significant part of this exposure is hedged by denominating most of its debt servicing 
obligations in U.S. Dollars and incurring some of its operating and repair costs in foreign currency. The net currency exposure is 
then managed actively using hedged products like foreign exchange forwards and option contracts. The tenure of these contracts 
is up to one year.
The Company exposure to unhedged foreign currency is listed as under :

Details Currency As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

  Loan Liabilities and Payables  AED 0.963 0.418 0.646

 AUD 0.033 0.004 0.007

 CAD 0.122  -  - 

 CHF 0.037 0.008 0.001

 CNY  - 0.001  - 

 DKK 0.584 2.431 0.734

 EUR 0.351 0.695 0.369

 GBP 0.082 0.019 0.047

 JPY 53.673 65.967 54.443

 NOK 0.104 0.316 0.477

 SEK  - 0.033 0.004

 SGD 1.058 0.871 3.313

 USD 772.241 567.239 607.493

 ZAR 0.066  -  - 

  Receivables  AED 0.046 0.038 0.088

 AUD 0.033 0.004  - 

 CAD 0.110  -  - 

 CHF 0.032 0.032  - 

 DKK 0.022 0.103  - 

 EUR 0.023 0.353 0.928

 GBP 0.027  - 0.042

 JPY 10.157 5.105 6.208

 NOK 0.009 0.053 0.249
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Details Currency As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

 SGD 0.019 0.022 0.534

 USD 15.323 15.122 13.847

 ZAR 0.066  -  - 

  Bank Balances  USD 298.453 247.827 177.720

 GBP  - 0.075 0.081

 EUR  - 0.298 0.269

 AED 0.167 0.132 0.406

 SGD 0.264 0.165 0.153

 NOK  - 0.082 0.243

 DKK  - 0.164 0.070

Sensitivity Analysis :
A 5% strengthening / weakening of Indian Rupee against key currencies to which the Company is exposed (net of hedge), with all other 
variables being held constant, would have led to approximately a gain / loss of ` 149.19 crores (Previous Year : ` 101.26 crores)

(ii)	 Interest rate risk
External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs) raised by the Company are based on floating rate and thus the Company is exposed to 
changes in interest rates. Company has a system for taking suitable hedges through fixed rate interest swaps to minimise its effective 
borrowing costs.
Sensitivity Analysis :
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined to assess the interest rate risk on floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end 
of the reporting period.  The impact of change in floating interest rate  by 50 basis point on the Company’s annual interest liability would 
be ` 4.26 crores (Previous Year : ` 4.70 crores).
 

(iii)	Price risk
The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in debt mutual funds. The price risk arises due to uncertainties 
about the future market values of these investments.
Sensitivity Analysis :
A 1% increase in prices would have led to approximately an additional gain of ` 8.63 crores (Previous Year : ` 8.86 crores) in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. A 1% decrease in prices would have led to an equal but opposite effect.

(iv)	Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. 
The major class of financial asset of the Company is trade receivables. For credit exposures to customer, management assesses the 
credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
As the Company does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments is the 
carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the statement of financial position.

(v)	 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk may arise from inability to meet financial obligations, including loan repayments and payments for vessel acquisitions. 
This is dealt with by keeping low leverage, as a result of which the Company is able to borrow even in challenging markets. It is also 
mitigated by keeping substantial liquidity at all times, which enables the Company to capitalise on any opportunities that may arise. 
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Payable within  
1 year

Payable within  
2 - 5 years

More than  
5 years Total

As at March 31, 2017

Borrowings 683.24 1867.77 1880.70 4431.71

Trade payables 100.36  -  - 100.36

Unpaid Dividend 8.15  -  - 8.15

Interest Accrued but not due on 
Borrowings 133.52  -  - 133.52

925.27 1867.77 1880.70 4673.74

As at March 31, 2016

Borrowings 271.78 1986.27 619.87 2877.92

Trade payables 119.33  -  - 119.33

Unpaid Dividend 9.98  -  - 9.98

Interest Accrued but not due on 
Borrowings 76.78  -  - 76.78

477.87 1986.27 619.87 3084.01

As at April 1, 2015

Borrowings 490.36 1955.05 603.47 3048.88

Trade payables 114.42  -  - 114.42

Unpaid Dividend 6.58  -  - 6.58

Interest Accrued but not due on 
Borrowings 47.94  -  - 47.94

659.30 1955.05 603.47 3217.82

note 36 : Government Grants
The Company receives government assistance in the form of SFIS/DFCEC Licenses, which are issued to eligible Indian service providers 
having free foreign exchange earnings. It can be utilised for duty-free imports of office & professional equipment, spares, furniture and 
consumables or any other items notified by the Government from time to time.

Following are the balances of SFIS/DFCEC Licenses held by the Company :

Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance  11.98 -

Add : Licenses received during the year  -   18.19

Less : Amount utilised during the year  (4.92)  (6.21)

Less : Amount lapsed during the year  (7.06) -

Closing Balance  -   11.98   

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the non derivative financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows :
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note 38 : Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
As part of its Corporate Social Responsibity, the Company has set up the Great Eastern CSR Foundation for promoting education, 
knowledge enhancement and other activities to which the Company has contributed ` 5.84 crores during the current year (Previous Year 
: ` 2.99 crores)[Refer Note 27(q)].

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year.  5.84  2.99 

(b) Amount spent in cash for purposes other than for construction / acquisition of 
any asset during the year

 5.84  2.99 

(c) Provisions for corporate social responsibility expenses - -

(` in crores)

note 39 : Specified bank notes disclosure (SBNs)
In accordance with the MCA notification G.S.R. 308 (E) dated March 30, 2017 details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) and Other Denomination 
Notes (ODNs) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016, are provided as under :

note 40 : GENERAL
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / restated wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

Particulars	 SBNs ODNs Total

Closing cash on hand as on November 8, 2016  4,12,000 2,47,624  6,59,624 

Add : Permitted receipts  -    6,15,200  6,15,200 

Less : Permitted payments  -    (7,26,234)  (7,26,234)

Less : Amounts deposited with Banks  (4,12,000)  -  (4,12,000)

Closing cash on hand as on December 30, 2016 -  1,36,590  1,36,590 

(`)

note 37 : Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered 
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
a)	No loans or guarantees have been given to subsidiaries during the year.
b)	 The particulars of the Company’s investments in wholly owned subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 6.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE GREAT EASTERN SHIPPING COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of THE GREAT EASTERN SHIPPING COMPANY LIMITED 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as 
“the Group”), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of  Cash Flows for the 
year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the  
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in terms of 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”), that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and 
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We have taken into 
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 
We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements are free from material misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS 
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s 
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the 
Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS, of the consolidated financial position of the Group, as at March 31, 2017, their 
consolidated financial performance, including Other Comprehensive Income, the consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters:
We did not audit the financial statements of eight subsidiaries included in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whose financial 
statements reflect the Group’s share of total assets of Rs. 3,761.15 crores as at March 31, 2017, as well as the Group’s share of total revenue 
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of Rs. 172.43 crores and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 263.88 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated 
Ind AS Financial Statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by 
the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates 
to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the 
financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of other auditors on the separate 
financial statements  of  eight  subsidiaries as noted in the Other Matters paragraph above, we report, to the extent applicable that:
a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 

the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.
b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial 

Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.
c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2017 and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company 
incorporated in India, none of the Directors of the Group companies incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from 
being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration 
of the report of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiary, as noted in the Other Matters paragraph above:
i)	 The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial position in its Consolidated Ind AS Financial 

Statements. Refer Note 41 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.
ii)	 Provisions have been made in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, as required under applicable laws or Accounting 

Standards for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts, including derivative contracts. Refer Notes 2(p) and 42 to 
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

iii)	There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India.

iv)	The requisite disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes 
during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016, have been provided with respect to the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary company incorporated in India. Based on audit procedures and relying on the Management representations, we report 
that the disclosures are in accordance with the books of account and other records maintained by the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India and as produced to us by the Management of the Holding Company. Refer Note 45 to the 
Consolidated Ind AS Financials Statements.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Regn. No.: 104607W / W100166

Daraius Z.  Fraser
PARTNER
M. No.: 42454

Mumbai: May 5, 2017.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

Referred to in Paragraph (f) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of 
the Company on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of THE GREAT EASTERN SHIPPING COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, incorporated  in India, as of March 31, 2017, in conjunction with our 
audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company 
and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act” or “the Companies Act”).

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
1.	pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 

assets of the Company;

2.	provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of Management and Directors of the Company; and
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3.	provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
Management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies, incorporated in India, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Regn. No.: 104607W / W100166

Daraius Z.  Fraser
PARTNER
M. No.: 42454

Mumbai: May 5, 2017.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at march 31, 2017
(` in crores)

Particulars Note No. As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015
ASSETS
i. Non-Current Assets :
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 6 10303.87 8924.07 9049.59
(b) Capital Work-in-progress 21.71 328.28 122.46
(c) Intangible Assets 7 0.44 0.63 1.07
(d) Intangible Assets under development 0.67 0.15 0.16
(e) Financial Assets
      (i)  Non-Current Investments 8 3.50 - -
      (ii) Other Financial Assets 9 35.47 107.44 110.43
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 11.18 12.15 13.05
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 11 33.65 5.68 5.66

10410.49 9378.40 9302.42
ii. Current Assets :
(a) Inventories 12 144.76 113.23 140.08
(b) Financial Assets
      (i) Current Investments 13 871.58 911.80 1321.43
      (ii) Trade Receivables 14 208.93 307.79 334.62
      (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 1480.38 792.97 759.03
      (iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 16 1986.43 2152.12 1635.07
(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 17 79.92 71.14 55.38
(d) Asset held for sale 18 - 86.82 -
(e) Other Current Assets 11 104.02 118.56 126.50

4876.02 4554.43 4372.11
TOTAL ASSETS 15286.51 13932.83 13674.53
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
i. EQUITY :
(a) Equity Share Capital 19 150.78 150.78 150.78
(b) Other Equity 20 7072.55 6412.70 5563.35

7223.33 6563.48 5714.13
II. Non-Current Liabilities :
(a) Financial Liabilities
     (i)  Borrowings 21 5770.37 4907.74 5419.70
(b) Provisions 22 41.81 37.61 33.38
(c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 23 25.01 27.15 29.29

5837.19 4972.50 5482.37
III. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
      (i)  Borrowings 21 170.17 - -
      (ii) Trade Payables 24 191.23 224.27 215.96
      (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 25 1687.43 1995.39 2083.44
(b) Other Current Liabilities 23 115.90 112.15 123.15
(c) Provisions 22 16.35 32.74 25.09
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 26 44.91 32.30 30.39

2225.99 2396.85 2478.03
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15286.51 13932.83 13674.53
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
First time adoption of Ind AS 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report attached hereto For and on behalf of the Board
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. : 104607W / W100166
Daraius Z. Fraser
Partner
M. No. : 42454

G. Shivakumar
Executive Director & CFO
(DIN : 03632124)

K. M. Sheth
Chairman
(DIN : 00022079)
Bharat K. Sheth
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN : 00022102)

Cyrus Guzder
Director
(DIN : 00080358)

Jayesh M. Trivedi 
Company Secretary
(M. No. : 2822)

Mumbai : May 5, 2017.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS For the Year ended march 31, 2017
(` in crores)

Particulars Note No. Current Year Previous Year 

I. Revenue from Operations 27 3116.86 3807.77

II. Other Income 28 512.27 118.72

III. Total Income (I + II) 3629.13 3926.49

IV. Expenses :

      Employee Benefit Expenses 29 596.77 592.41

      Finance Costs 30 377.62 287.76

      Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 31 677.91 607.93

      Impairment Loss 32 184.33 163.69

      Other Expenses 33 910.92 1067.01

      Total Expenses (IV) 2747.55 2718.80

V. Profit Before Tax (III - IV) 881.58 1207.69

VI. Tax Expense : 

              - Current Tax 34 125.66 124.80

              - Deferred Tax 34 0.96 0.91

              - MAT Credit Utilised 34 - (15.00)

126.62 110.71

VII. Profit for the Year (V - VI) 754.96 1096.98

VIII. Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

        (a) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (0.13) (3.25)

        (b) Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 1.26 -

1.13 (3.25)

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
        (a) Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign
              operations (54.41) 115.63
        (b) Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging
              instruments in a cash flow hedge 10.16 (0.06)

        (c) Movement in Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Reserve 8.58 7.35

(35.67) 122.92

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Other Comprehensive Income (A (i-ii)+B(i-ii)) (34.54) 119.67

IX. Total Comprehensive Income (VII + VIII) 720.42 1216.65

X. Earnings per Equity Share : 35

(Face value per share ` 10 )

      - Basic ` 50.07 ` 72.76

      - Diluted ` 49.97 ` 72.61

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

First time adoption of Ind AS 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report attached hereto For and on behalf of the Board
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. : 104607W / W100166
Daraius Z. Fraser
Partner
M. No. : 42454

G. Shivakumar
Executive Director & CFO
(DIN : 03632124)

K. M. Sheth
Chairman
(DIN : 00022079)
Bharat K. Sheth
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN : 00022102)

Cyrus Guzder
Director
(DIN : 00080358)

Jayesh M. Trivedi 
Company Secretary
(M. No. : 2822)

Mumbai : May 5, 2017.
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consolidated STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
(` in crores)

Current Year Previous Year 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 881.58 1207.69

Adjustments For :

Depreciation and amortisation expense  677.91  607.93 

Impairment  184.33  163.69 

Interest Income  (56.89)  (46.67)

Interest expense 377.62  287.76 

Dividend Income  (0.90)  (1.39)

Net gain on investments  (122.66)  (81.90)

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (38.53)  (25.15)

Provision for loss on cancelled contract  -  7.84 

Bad debts and advances written off  0.01  0.41 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net)  (4.42)  10.34 

Changes in fair value of embedded derivative  -  (0.70)

Revaluation of foreign currency balances  (333.35)  95.62 

Operating profit before working capital changes 1564.70 2225.47

Adjustments For :

(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables  116.58  46.25 

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories  (31.57)  27.06 

(Increase) / Decrease in non-current assets  (13.31)  0.04

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities  (40.02)  (26.34)

Increase / (Decrease) in non-current liabilities  2.06  2.09

Cash generated from operations 1598.44 2274.57

Direct Taxes Paid  (120.27)  (123.84)

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities 1478.17 2150.73

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (2098.47)  (829.71)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  199.37  267.23 

Advances for acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (12.03)  - 

Purchase of current investments (5442.11) (3464.57)

Proceeds from disposal /redemption of current investments 5605.24 3956.13 

Advance paid for Investments  (3.06)  -

Withdrawal / (Placement) of deposits with banks (net)  171.07  (436.03)

Interest received  51.88  37.72 

Dividend received  0.90  1.39 

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (1527.21) (467.84)
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(` in crores)

Current Year Previous Year 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings 3783.61 910.14 

Repayments of borrowings (2660.99) (1922.01)

Dividends paid  (54.28)  (312.49)

Dividend distribution tax paid  (11.05)  (61.89)

Interest paid  (298.98)  (290.41)

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities  758.31 (1676.66)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 709.27 6.23

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 792.97 759.05

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents  (21.86) 27.69

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1480.38 792.97

As per our Report attached hereto

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. : 104607W / W100166

Daraius Z. Fraser
Partner
M. No. : 42454

G. Shivakumar
Executive Director & CFO
(DIN : 03632124)

For and on behalf of the Board

K. M. Sheth
Chairman
(DIN : 00022079)

Bharat K. Sheth
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN : 00022102)

Cyrus Guzder
Director
(DIN : 00080358)

Jayesh M. Trivedi 
Company Secretary
(M.No. : 2822)

Mumbai : May 5, 2017.
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Corporate Information
The Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd. (the Company) is a public limited company registered in India under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1913. Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange of India and on the Luxembourg 
Stock Exchange. The Company is a major player in the Indian Shipping industry. 

Note 1 : Significant Accounting Policies

a)	Basis of Preparation :
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the 
historical cost convention (except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period) 
on accrual basis to comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Group prepared its financial statements upto the year ended March 31, 2016 in accordance with the requirements of previous 
GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. These are the Group’s first Ind AS 
financial statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April l, 2015. The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 and 
the opening Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for comparative information. The details of 
first-time adoption exemptions availed by the Group are given in Note 2. Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of the transition 
from Previous GAAP to Ind AS on the Group’s Equity, Total Comprehensive Income and Statement of Cash Flows are provided in Note 2. 

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all 
the periods presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015 being 
the ‘date of transition to Ind AS’. All assets and liabilities have been classified as Current and Non-Current as per the Company’s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services rendered and the 
time between the rendering of the services and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Group has ascertained its operating 
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current and Non-Current classification of assets and liabilities.
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 
5, 2017.

b)	 Basis of Measurement :
These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated.

c)	Use of Estimates :
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management 
of the Group to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements 
and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of property, plant and equipment, useful lives 
of property, plant and equipment, provision and contingent liabilities.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment :
The Group reviews the carrying value of property, plant and equipment annually or more frequently when there is indication of 
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.			 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2017
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment :
The Group reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This assessment may result in 
change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Provisions & Contingent Liabilities :
A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions other than retirement 
benefits and compensated absences are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to 
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements.

d)	Property, plant and equipment :
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost 
includes expenses related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets, borrowing costs during construction period (net off 
capital subsidy/grant received) and excludes any duties/taxes recoverable.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each reporting date is classified as capital advances under Other Non-
Current Assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under Capital Work In Progress.

Subsequent expenditure relating to PPE are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will 
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenses on maintaining property, plant and equipment, 
including day to day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the period during which such expenses are incurred except for dry dock expenditure.

Grabs and Dry docks are considered as components of Fleet with estimated useful lives different than the main component of Fleet. 
Cost relating to Dry dock which is mandatorily required to be carried out as per the Classification Rules and Regulations is recognised in 
the carrying amount of the Ship and is amortised from the completion of survey till the estimated date for next special survey.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit And Loss.

Exchange differences on repayment and year end translation of foreign currency loans availed upto March 31, 2016 and fair value gains 
or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges that are transferred from Hedging Reserve relating to acquisition of depreciable capital assets 
are adjusted to the carrying cost of the assets.

e)	Intangible Assets :
Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible 
assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives.

f)	Non-current asset held for sale :
An item of Property, plant and equipment is classified as non-current asset held for sale at the time when the Management is committed 
to sell / dispose off the asset as per Memorandum of Agreement entered into and the asset is expected to be sold / disposed off within 
one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

g)	Inventories :
Inventories of fuel oil on vessels and stores & spares on rigs are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is ascertained on 
first–in–first out basis for fuel oil and on weighted average basis for stores & spares on rigs. The cost includes all costs of purchase and 
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

h)	Borrowing Costs :
Borrowing costs include interest and ancillary cost incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences 
arising from foreign currency borrowings availed on or after April 1, 2016, to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest 
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cost. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition/construction of the qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the 
cost of the asset, upto the date of acquisition/completion of construction. Other borrowing costs are recognised in the period in which 
they occur except for transaction costs which are amortised over the period of the loan.        

i)	 Revenue Recognition :	
Income from services : In case of completed voyages, freight and demurrage earnings are recognised fully and in case of incomplete 
voyages, freight and demurrage earnings are recognised prorata on the basis of direct operating expenses incurred as compared to 
total estimated direct operating expenses for the voyage. Charter hire earnings are accrued on time proportion basis except where the 
charter party agreements have not been renewed/finalised, in which case it is recognised on provisional basis.

Interest : Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal amount outstanding and the 
applicable effective interest rate.

Dividends : Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established.

j)	 Operating Expenses :
(i) 	 Fleet direct operating expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.
(ii) 	Stores and spares delivered on board the ships are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.  Spares on board rigs are charged 

to the Statement of Profit and Loss on consumption basis.
(iii) 	Expenses on account of general average claims / damages to ships are written off in the year in which they are incurred. Claims 

against the underwriters are accounted for on acceptance of average adjustment by the adjustors.
(iv) 	Bunker consumption cost, which is part of direct operating expenses, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on consumption.

k)	Leases :
Group is the Lessee.
i)	 Finance Lease
	 Lease of assets where the Group assumes substantially the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets 

held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor (net of finance charges) is included in the 
Balance Sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease 
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly 
to income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability for each period.

	 Gain / (loss) arising from sale and finance leaseback of the vessel is determined based on fair values. Sale proceeds in excess of 
fair values and the excess of fair value over sale proceeds are deferred and amortised over the minimum lease terms.

ii)	 Operating lease
	 Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset vest with the lessor, are recognised as 

operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, unless the lease agreement explicitly provides for future increases.

l)	 Employee Benefits :
i)	 Short-Term Employee Benefits :
	 All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. 

Benefits such as salaries, performance incentives, etc., are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss of the year in which the employee renders the related service.

ii)	 Post Employment Benefits :
	 Liability is provided for retirement benefits of Provident Fund, Superannuation, Gratuity and Leave Encashment in respect of all 

eligible employees and for pension benefit to Whole-time Directors of the Company.

a.	 Defined Contribution Plan
Employee benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund, Provident Fund and other Seamen’s Welfare Contributions are considered 



173

as defined contribution plans and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period when the 
contributions to the respective funds are due.

b.	 Defined Benefit Plan
	 Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity and the Pension plan for Whole-time Directors are   considered as defined benefit 

obligations and are provided for on the basis of actuarial valuations, using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the 
Balance Sheet.

c.	 Other Long-Term Benefits
	 Long-term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, 

as at the date of the Balance Sheet. 
	
	 Actuarial gain / loss, comprising of experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions is recognised 

in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income except for Long-term compensated absences where the same is immediately 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

m)	Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment and Amortisation of Intangible Asset :
i)	 Depreciation or amortisation is provided on Straight Line Method basis so as to write off the original cost of the asset less its 

estimated residual value over the estimated useful life. The estimated useful life of the assets are as under : 

Asset Type Estimated Useful Life

Property, plant and equipment :

Fleet (Main)

- Crude Oil and Product Tankers	 20 years

- Dry Bulk Carriers * 23 years

- Gas Carriers * 27 years

- Offshore Supply Vessels 20 years

- Speed Boats 13 years

Fleet (Component)

- Grabs 10 years

- Dry Dock Period from survey certificate date till the estimated date for next special survey

Modern Rigs 30 years

Leasehold Land Lease period

Leasehold Improvements Lease Period

Ownership Flats and Buildings 60 years

Furniture & Fixtures, Office Equipment, etc.* 5 years

Computers

- Servers and Networks 6 years

- End User Devices 3 years

Vehicles * 4 years

Mobiles * 2 years

Plant and Equipment * 3 to 10 years

Intangible Assets :

Software 5 years

* For these class of assets, based on internal technical assessment and past experience, the Management believes that the useful 
lives as given above, best represent the period over which the Management expects the use of the assets. The useful lives of these 
assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
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i)	 Estimated useful life of the Fleet, Rigs and Ownership Flats and Buildings is considered from the year of built. Estimated useful life 
in case of all other assets is considered from the date of acquisition by the Company.

ii)	 Residual value in case of Fleet (other than Offshore Supply Vessels and Speed Boats) is estimated initially as amount equal to 
product of long tonnes and estimated scrap value per long tonne based on previous ten years moving average of scrap rates. 
Residual value in case of Offshore Supply Vessels has been estimated on the basis of Light Displacement Weight (LDT) of the 
vessels and the prevailing average rate for steel scrap. The residual value in case of rigs has been estimated at 5% of the cost of rig. 
In case of other assets, the residual value, being negligible, has been considered as Nil.

iii)	The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in 
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

n)	Asset Impairment : 
	 The carrying amounts of the Group’s Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amounts are estimated 
in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
impairment takes place. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value 
of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

	 Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, however subject to the increased carrying amount not exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of 
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior accounting periods. 

o)	Foreign Exchange Transactions :
	 The functional currency of the Holding Company is Indian Rupee.

	 In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Holding Company’s 
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions (standard 
exchange rates determined monthly). At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

	 Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement Profit And Loss in the period in which they arise except for:
• 	exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included 

in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;	

• 	exchange differences on long term foreign currency monetary items relating to acquisition of depreciable assets and recognised in 
the consolidated financial statements prior to April 1, 2016 as an adjustment to the carrying cost of the depreciable asset, continue to 
be accounted as an adjustment to the carrying cost of the depreciable asset.

• 	exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (refer hedging accounting policies); 
and

• 	exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned 
nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in Other 
Comprehensive Income and reclassified from equity to the Statement Profit and Loss on repayment of the monetary items.
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p)	Financial Instruments :
	I nitial Recognition
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement Profit and Loss.

	
	 Subsequent measurement
	 Financial Assets 
	 All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value through Profit and 

Loss (FVTPL) or fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI), depending on the classification of the financial assets. The 
purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

	 Cash and Cash Equivalents :
	 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid financial instruments 

which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original 
maturities of three months or less.

	
	 Fixed deposit having residual maturity upto twelve months from the reporting period is considered as part of bank balances other than 

cash and cash equivalent. Fixed deposit with residual maturity more than twelve months from reporting period is classified under Other 
Non Current Assets.

	 Trade Receivables and Loans : 
	 These assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the 

rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

	 Debt Instruments : 
Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value 
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and 
(ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
a.	 Measured at amortised cost  : 
	 Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash 

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation using EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

b.	 Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income : 
	 Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting 

contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income. Fair value movements are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest income measured 
using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c.	 Measured at fair value through Profit or Loss : 
	 A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at 

fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘Other Income’ in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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	 Equity Instruments : 
	 All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Group may, on initial 

recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL. 
	
	 The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is recognised 

as Other Income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Group has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value 
changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are 
not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are 
recognised as ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Impairment of financial assets :
	 Expected credit losses are recognised for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in FVTPL 

category. The Group’s trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables 
is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses and reversals are 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Derecognition of financial assets :
	 The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the 

financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

	 Financial liabilities
	 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

	 Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

	 Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of 
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are 
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in 
‘Finance Costs’.

	 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense 
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all 
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial 
recognition.

	 Derecognition of financial liabilities :
	 The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. 

A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the 
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	
	 Offsetting financial instruments :
	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable 

right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

	 Derivative financial instruments :
	 The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate 

risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps, currency swaps, commodity swaps, etc. Further details of 
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 42.
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	 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured 
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item. The gains or 
losses on derivative contracts related to the acquisition of depreciable capital assets are added to or deducted from the cost of the 
assets and not recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Embedded derivatives
	 Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109 are treated as 

separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts 
are not measured at FVTPL.

	H edge accounting
	 The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives and non-derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, as 

either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

	 At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, 
along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception 
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in 
fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. Note 42 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative 
instruments used for hedging purposes.

	 Fair value hedges
	 Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged 
risk. The change in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to the 
hedged risk are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the line item relating to the hedged item.

	 Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer 
qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is 
amortised to the Statement of Profit and Loss from that date.

	 Cash flow hedges
	 The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in 

Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated under the heading of Cash Flow Hedging Reserve. The gain or loss relating to the 
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Amounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity (relating to effective portion as described 
above) are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line 
as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a 
non-financial liability, such gains and losses are transferred from equity (but not as a reclassification adjustment) and included in the 
initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

	 Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for 
hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity 
and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When a forecast transaction 
is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
	 Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging 

instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated under the 
heading of Foreign Currency Translation Reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, and is included under the head “Gain / (Loss) on foreign currency and derivatives transactions (net)”.	
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	 Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in the Foreign Currency 
Translation Reserve are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss on the disposal of the foreign operation.

q)	Taxation :
	 Income tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i)	 Current income-tax is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws, enacted 
or substantially enacted as at the Balance Sheet date. Income from shipping activities is assessed on the basis of deemed tonnage 
income of the Group. 

ii)	 Deferred income-tax is recognised on timing differences, between taxable income and accounting income which originate in one 
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods only in respect of the non-tonnage activities of the Group. 
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The tax effect is calculated 
on the accumulated timing differences at the year end based on tax rates and laws, enacted or substantially enacted as of the 
Balance Sheet date. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries where it is expected 
that the earnings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

iii)	The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred tax 
assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws which is likely to give future economic benefits in 
the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset when the 
asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group 
will pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

r)	Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :
	 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that 

an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation 
at the Balance Sheet date.

	 Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a 
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

s)	 Earnings per share :
	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period is adjusted for events, such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue and shares split that have changed the 
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings 
per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

t)	 Government Grant :
	 Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching 

to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic 
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. 
Government grants used to acquire non-current asset are recognised as deferred revenue in the Balance Sheet and transferred to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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Note 2 : First-time adoption - mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions
The Holding Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect from 
April 1, 2016, with a transition date of April 1, 2015. The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time 
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are issued and effective 
for the first Ind AS financial statements be applied retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. Accordingly, the Group 
has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS for year ended March 31, 2017, together with the comparative information as 
at and for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015, the date of transition to Ind AS.

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Group has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101, 
as explained below. The resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at the 
transition date under Ind AS and Previous GAAP have been recognised directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate category 
of equity). This note explains the adjustments made by the Group in restating its financial statements prepared under previous GAAP, 
including the Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Mandatory Exceptions from retrospective application 
The Group has applied the following exceptions to the retrospective application of Ind AS as mandatorily required under Ind AS 101:
1. 	Estimates 
	 On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Group has concluded that there is no 

necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates 
that were required under Ind AS but not required under Previous GAAP are made by the Group for the relevant reporting dates reflecting 
conditions existing as at that date.

2. 	Classification and measurement of financial assets
	 The classification of financial assets to be measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other Comprehensive Income is made on 

the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed on the date of transition to Ind AS.

Optional Exemptions 
1.	 Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment (including ships under construction) (as per Ind AS requirement alongwith Ind AS 

101 exemption)
	 The Group has used fair value as deemed cost for certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and ships under construction in 

accordance with the exemptions available under Ind AS 101 with the resultant impact being accounted for in reserves. The consequent 
impact on change in depreciation is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases where items of PPE have not been fair 
valued, the Group has restated their written down values as per provisions under Ind AS 16 with retrospective effect.

2.	 Component Accounting (as per Ind AS requirement alongwith regrouping)
	 The Group has elected to account dry dock expenditure as a component of Fleet with useful life different than Fleet (Main). The same 

was earlier expensed out in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
	 The Group has elected to account Grabs as a component of Fleet with useful life different than Fleet (Main). The same was earlier 

accounted under the head ‘Plant and Equipment’.

3. 	Cumulative translation differences on foreign operations (as per Ind AS 101 exemption)
	 The Group has opted not to reset the cumulative translation differences on foreign operations that existed as of the transition date to zero.

4.	 Long Term Foreign Currency Monetary Items (as per Ind AS 101 exemption)
	 The Group has elected to continue accounting for exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign currency monetary 

items recognised in the financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting 
period as per the previous GAAP.

5. 	Assessment of embedded derivatives (as per Ind AS 101 exemption)
	 The Group has assessed whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated from the host contract and accounted for as a 

derivative on the basis of the conditions that existed at the later of the date it first became a party to the contract and the date when 
there has been a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required under 
the contract.
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Transition to Ind AS – Reconciliations
The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the transition from Previous GAAP 
to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101:
(i) 	Reconciliation of equity :

(` in crores)

Particulars Note As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015

Equity as per previous GAAP : 8283.90 7430.62

Fair value of assets used as deemed cost on transition A (2020.66) (2020.66)

Deferred tax on fair value adjustments to non-tonnage assets A 12.15 12.15

Fair value adjustment of financial instruments B 180.05 67.21

Reversal of proposed dividend provision (including dividend tax) C  -   137.22

Foreign currency translation adjustment on fair value component of fleet D (20.14) 41.84 

Impact of change in incomplete voyage accounting E 25.76 25.76 

Others F 16.78 19.99

Increase in profit as per Ind AS [Refer note (ii) below] 57.58  -   

Rectification of dividend provision G 28.06 -   

Equity as per Ind AS : 6563.48 5714.13

(ii) Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016  :
(` in crores)

Particulars Note Year ended March 31, 2016

Net profit previously reported under previous GAAP : 1039.40

Impact on depreciation and impairment due to fair valuation of certain Property, 
Plant and Equipment and component accounting of dry-dock expenditure

A 225.49 

Mark to market gain / (loss) on derivative transactions B (127.35)

Mutual fund investments restated at fair value B (37.61)   

Accounting for incomplete voyage revenue E (0.75) 

Others F (2.20)

Net profit as per Ind AS : 1096.98

Other Comprehensive Income 119.67

Total Comprehensive Income 1216.65

(iii) Adjustments to Statement of Cash flows
	 There were no material differences between the Statement of Cash Flows presented under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP.
Notes : 
a)	 Property, plant and equipment :
	 The Group has used fair value as deemed cost for certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment in accordance with the exemptions 

available under Ind AS 101 with the resultant impact being accounted for in reserves. The consequent impact on change in depreciation 
is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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The aggregate of the fair values used as deemed cost as on the date of transition and the aggregate adjustments to the carrying 
amount reported under previous GAAP are as under :

(` in crores)

Particulars
As at April 1, 2015

Aggregate fair value Aggregate adjustments to the carrying amount

Rigs 3125.00 (829.38)

Fleet 1807.22 (950.04)

Plant and Equipment 34.01 (136.32)

Ships under construction 121.14 (104.92)

Total 5087.37 (2020.66)

b) 	Fair value adjustment to financial instruments :
	 Investment in mutual funds are restated as at April 1, 2015 (transition date) at fair value under Ind AS as against accounting at cost or 

market value (whichever is lower) under previous GAAP.  This has resulted in an increase in equity by ` 63.63 crores as at March 31, 
2016 and by ` 66.47 crores as at April 1, 2015.

	 Currency swaps derivative instruments entered against the debt exposure were accounted under previous GAAP adopting hedge 
accounting by matching the offsetting cash flows of the currency swaps against highly probable forecast revenues in foreign currency. 
But due to lack of economic relationship between these two types of cash flows, the said currency swaps derivative instruments do 
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS. Hence, the hedge accounting for the said currency swaps derivative instruments is 
discontinued under Ind AS. Accordingly, the gain or loss on remeasurement of fair values of the said instruments will now be recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Ind AS. This has resulted in an increase in equity by ` 116.42 crores as at March 31, 2016 and 
by ` 0.74 crores as at April 1, 2015.

c) 	Equity dividend including dividend tax :
	 Under Ind AS, dividend to holders of equity instruments and tax on the same is recognised as liability in the period in which the 

obligation to pay is established. Under previous GAAP, dividend payable and tax on the same was recorded as a liability in the period to 
which it related. Accordingly the said liability recognised under previous GAAP is derecognised under Ind AS as at April 1, 2015.

d) 	Derivative transactions :
	 Under Ind AS 109, all derivatives are required to be fair valued through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) unless they are designated as hedging 

instruments and tested for effectiveness. Consequently, USD/JPY swaps which were earlier treated as integral part of JPY loan were 
revalued and the exchange difference on principal was capitalised under previous GAAP, are now treated as derivative instruments 
under Ind AS.

e) 	Incomplete voyage accounting :
	 Revenues and expenses in respect of incomplete voyages at the end of the accounting period, are recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss under Ind AS as detailed in the accounting policies stated above. Under the previous GAAP, the same were recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss only on completion of the voyage.

f) 	 Others :
	 Others comprises of adjustments on account of capitalisation of borrowing costs (` 7.80 crores), capitalisation of dry dock expenditure 

as component of fleet (` 12.90 crores), Employee Benefits Actuarial loss transferred from the Statement of Profit and Loss to Other 
Comprehensive Income (` 3.25 crores) and mark to market loss on embedded derivative on charter hire contract (` 0.67 crore) as at 
March 31, 2016.

	 Others comprises of adjustments on account of capitalisation of borrowing costs (` 7.80 crores), capitalisation of dry dock expenditure as 
component of fleet (` 12.90 crores) and mark to market loss on embedded derivative on charter hire contract (` 0.71 crore) as at April 1, 2015.

g) 	Rectification of dividend provision :
	 Rectification for elimination of provision for dividend on consolidation.
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note 3 : basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements relate to The Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd., (GESCO) the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group). The consolidated financial statements of the Company with its subsidiaries have been 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 110, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’. The financial statements of the parent 
and its subsidiaries are combined on a line by line basis and intra group balances, intra group transactions and unrealised profits/(losses) 
are fully eliminated.
In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at an average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are 
converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year. Exchange gains/(losses) arising on conversion are recognised under Foreign 
Currency Translation Reserve.
In the consolidated financial statements, ‘Goodwill’ represents the excess of the cost to the Company of its investment in the subsidiaries 
over its share of equity, at the respective dates on which the investments are made. Alternatively, where the share of equity as on the date 
of investment is in excess of cost of investment, it is recognised as ‘Capital Reserve’ in the consolidated financial statements.

note 4 :
The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of the Holding 
Company i.e. March 31, 2017.

note 5 :
The subsidiary companies considered in these consolidated financial statements are :

Sr. 
No. Name of the Companies Country of 

Incorporation

Ownership in % either directly or through 
Subsidiaries

 As at 
31/03/2017

 As at 
31/03/2016

 As at 
01/04/2015

1 The Great Eastern Shipping Co. London Ltd.  
(wound up as at the end of the year ended March 
31, 2016)

U.K.  - - 100%

2 The Greatship (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100% 100% 100%

3 The Great Eastern Chartering L.L.C. (FZC) U.A.E. 100% 100% 100%

3a The Great Eastern Chartering (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 
(wholly owned subsidiary of The Great Eastern 
Chartering L.L.C. (FZC))

Singapore 100% 100% 100%

4 Greatship (India) Ltd. India 100% 100% 100%

4a Greatship Global Holdings Ltd.  
(wholly owned subsidiary of Greatship (India) Ltd.)

Mauritius 100% 100% 100%

(i) Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd. 
(wholly owned subsidiary of Greatship Global 
Holdings Ltd.)

Singapore 100% 100% 100%

1. GGOS Labuan Ltd. 
    (wholly owned subsidiary of Greatship Global 
    Offshore Services Pte. Ltd.)
    (Deregistered on March 4, 2017)

Malaysia  - 100% 100%

4b Greatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd.  
(subsidiary of Greatship Global Holdings Ltd. Upto 
March 28, 2017 and direct subsidiary of Greatship 
(India) Ltd. thereafter)

Singapore 100% 100% 100%

4c Greatship (UK) Ltd.  
(wholly owned subsidiary of Greatship (India) Ltd.)

U.K. 100% 100% 100%

4d Greatship Oilfield Services Ltd. 
(wholly owned subsidiary of Greatship (India) Ltd.) 
(incorporated on July 9, 2015)

India 100% 100%  -

5 Great Eastern CSR Foundation India 100% 100% 100%
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Notes:
a)	On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to measure certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment at the date of 

transition to Ind AS at their fair values and use those fair values as its deemed cost on the date of transition in accordance with 
the exemptions available under Ind AS 101, the resultant impact being accounted for in reserves. The consequent impact 
on change in depreciation is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases where items of PPE have not been 
fair valued, the Group has restated their written down values as per provisions under Ind AS 16 with restrospective effect. 
 
The aggregate of the fair values used as deemed cost as on the date of the transition and the aggregate adjustments to the carrying 
amount reported under previous GAAP are as under:

Particulars
As at April 1, 2015

Aggregate fair value Aggregate adjustments to the 
carrying amount

Fleet 1807.22  (950.04)

Rigs 3125.00  (829.38)

Plant and Equipment 34.01  (136.32)

Ships under construction disclosed under Capital 
Work-in-progress

121.14  (104.92)

Total 5087.37 (2020.66)

b)	The ownership flats and buildings include ` 11,760 (Previous Year : ` 11,760) being value of shares held in various co-operative societies.

c)	The deed of assignment in respect of the Group’s leasehold property at Worli is yet to be transferred in the name of the Group.

d)	During the year ended March 31, 2016, deductions under Fleet include :
(i) vessel acquired and sold on the same day and hence no depreciation has been charged thereon.
(ii) vessel classified as asset held for sale and removed from net block.

e)	In accordance with the Ind AS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’, the Group has recognised impairment loss amounting to ` 184.33 crores 
(Previous Year : ` 105.37 crores) under Fleet during the year included in Note 32.

f)	Other adjustments comprise of fluctuation of the rupee against foreign currencies and losses/(gains) on hedging contracts (including 
on cancellation of forward covers), relating to long term monetary items for acquisition of depreciable capital assets and losses/(gains) 
on forward contracts for hedging capital commitments for acquisition of depreciable assets.

g)	Fleet and Rigs with a carrying amount of ` 7339.12 crores (as at March 31, 2016 : ` 7206.53 crores; as at April 1, 2015 : ` 8179.68 crores) 
and buildings with a carrying amount of ` 0.26 crore (as at March 31, 2016 : ` 0.26 crore; as at April 1, 2015 : ` 0.27 crore) have been 
mortgaged to secure borrowings of the Group (Refer Note 21). The Group is not allowed to mortgage these assets as security for other 
borrowings or to sell them to another entity, without approval of the lenders / security trustees.

(` in crores)
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Note 8 : Non-Current Investments

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

No. of 
shares ` in crores No. of 

shares ` in crores No. of 
shares ` in crores

Investments in Equity Instruments
Equity shares : (Quoted - valued at fair value 
through OCI)

Safe Bulkers, Inc. 2,44,568 3.50  -    -    -    -   

Equity Shares : (Unquoted - valued at fair value 
through profit or loss)

Seachange Maritime L.L.C. 11,04,000  -   11,04,000  -   11,04,000  -   

 3.50  -    -   

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  3.50  -    -   

Market Value of quoted investments  3.50  -    -   

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  -    -    -   

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of 
investments  -    -    -   

note 9 : other non-current financial assets
(unsecured)

note 10 : Deferred Tax Assets (net)

Notes : 

 As at 31/03/2017  As at 31/03/2016  As at 01/04/2015

(a) Non-Current Bank Balances (Refer Note 16) 34.78  94.94  102.04

(b) Interest Accrued  0.69  12.50  8.39

 35.47  107.44  110.43

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

 As at 31/03/2017  As at 31/03/2016  As at 01/04/2015

Deferred tax assets (net) (in respect of the 
non-tonnage activities of the Group)  11.18  12.15  13.05 

 11.18  12.15  13.05 

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 
in relation to:

 As at 01/04/2016 Recognised in 
Statement of 

Profit and Loss

As at 31/03/2017

Property, plant and equipment  12.03  (1.13)  10.89

Provision for doubtful debts  -  0.20  0.20

Defined benefit obligations  0.12  (0.03)  0.09

 12.15  (0.96)  11.18

(` in crores)
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Deferred tax assets / 
(liabilities) in relation to:

 As at 01/04/2015 Recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss

As at 31/03/2016

Property, plant and equipment  12.78  (0.76)  12.03

Provision for doubtful debts  -  -  -

Defined benefit obligations  0.27  (0.15)  0.12

 13.05  (0.91)  12.15

(` in crores)

Income from shipping activities of the Group in India is assessed on the basis of deemed tonnage income in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 115VA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and no deferred tax is applicable to such income as there are no taxable temporary 
differences. Income from operation of vessels and rigs operating outside the limits of the port of Singapore is also exempt under Section 
13A of the Singapore Income Tax Act.
Consequently, deferred tax is recognised only in respect of the taxable temporary differences relating to the non tonnage income.	

note 11 : other assets
(unsecured)

note 12 : inventories 
(Valued at lower of cost ANd net realisable value)

Other Non-Current Assets Other Current Assets
 As at 

31/03/2017
 As at 

31/03/2016
 As at 

01/04/2015
 As at 

31/03/2017
 As at 

31/03/2016
 As at 

01/04/2015
Considered good

(a) Capital Advances  12.03  0.33  0.42  -  -  -

(b) Security Deposits 2.84 2.63 2.56 3.09 4.46 13.98

(c) Other Advances 18.78 2.72 2.68 100.93 114.10 112.52

Considered doubtful

(a) Security Deposits 0.44 0.44 0.44  -  -  -

(b) Other Advances  -  -  - 2.59 4.33 4.90

Less : Allowance for doubtful
           advances

(0.44) (0.44) (0.44) (2.59) (4.33) (4.90)

 33.65  5.68  5.66  104.02  118.56  126.50

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

 As at 31/03/2017  As at 31/03/2016  As at 01/04/2015

(a) Stores and Spares on Board Rigs  68.04  68.03  67.28

(b) Fuel Oils  76.72 45.20  72.80

 144.76  113.23  140.08

Note : 
Inventories of stores and spares on rigs and fuel oils on vessels and rigs are recognised as expense on consumption and stores and spares 
relating to vessels are recognised as expense when delivered on board the vessels. The cost of inventories recognised as an expense 
during the year was ` 263.24 crores (Previous Year : ` 364.09 crores).
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 As at 31/03/2017  As at 31/03/2016  As at 01/04/2015

Considered good  208.93  307.79  334.62

Considered doubtful  9.12  29.83  18.29

 218.05  337.62  352.91

Less : Allowance for Doubtful Receivables  (9.12)  (29.83)  (18.29)

 208.93  307.79  334.62

Notes:
i)	 Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoiced amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. Trade receivables 

are considered to be of short duration and are not discounted. The carrying values are assumed to approximate their fair values.
Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Group’s customer base being large and diverse. 
Historical experience of collection of receivables also indicates that credit risk is low. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for 
default on a quarterly basis. Trade receivables are due from customers having high credit quality and strong financials. In determining 
the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance 
for trade receivables based on historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss 
allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables.

The movement in expected credit loss during the year is as follows:

Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance  29.83  18.29

Add : Current year allowance  34.07  33.39

Less : Reversal during the year  (54.78)  (21.85)

Closing Balance  9.12  29.83

note 13 : current investments 

 As at 31/03/2017  As at 31/03/2016  As at 01/04/2015

Investments in mutual funds : Unquoted (valued at 
fair value through profit or loss) 871.58 911.80 1321.43

871.58 911.80 1321.43

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  -  -  -

Market Value of quoted investments  -  -  -

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 871.58 911.80 1321.43

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of 
investments

 -  -  -

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Note:
Mutual Funds aggregating to ` 152.64 crores (as at March 31, 2016 : ` 280.02 crores; as at April 1, 2015 : ` 180.95 crores) of the above have 
been placed under lien with banks for facilities given by them.

note 14 : trade receivables
(unsecured)

ii)	Trade receivables are subject to confirmation, reconciliation and adjustments, if any.
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note 15 : cash and cash equivalents 
(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

(a) Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 1426.87  780.83  730.69

(b) Bank Deposits having maturity period of less than 3 months  53.45  12.06  28.30

(c) Cash on Hand  0.06  0.08  0.04

1480.38 792.97 759.03

note 16 : Other Bank Balances

Non-Current Current

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

(a) Deposits having residual maturity upto
12 months  -    -    -   1800.75 1966.54 1374.41 

(b) Deposits with maturity period of 
more than 12 months  32.43  92.75  100.00  -    -    -   

(c) Balances with Banks - Unpaid 
Dividend  -    -    -    8.15  9.98  6.58 

(d) Margin Money Deposits  2.35  2.19  2.04  147.77  159.63  242.06 

(e) Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits  -    -    -    29.76  15.97  12.02 

 34.78  94.94  102.04 1986.43 2152.12 1635.07 

Less : Amount disclosed under Note 9 : Other 
Non-Current Financial Assets  (34.78)  (94.94)  (102.04) - - - 

- - - 1986.43 2152.12 1635.07

Margin Money given as security :

Margin Money Deposits comprise of -

(i) deposits placed with banks under lien 
against facilities given by the banks  -    -    -    126.25  127.03  212.18 

(ii) earmarked balances with banks in 
margin deposits  2.35  2.19  2.04  21.52  32.60  29.88 

2.35 2.19  2.04 147.77 159.63 242.06

(` in crores)
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note 18 : Asset Held for Sale
(` in crores)

(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Vessel held for sale	  -    86.82  -   

 -    86.82  -   

Current Year Previous Year

Gross Block  (Refer Note 6)  173.16  173.16 

Add : Additions during the year  14.20  -   

Less : Accumulated depreciation  (27.18)  (27.18)

Less: Impairment loss  (59.16)  (59.16)

Less : Disposed during the year  (101.02)  -   

 -    86.82 

Reclassification from Property, plant and equipment :

Note :
The vessel classified as held for sale during the year ended March 31, 2016, was sold during the current year.

note 19 : Equity Share Capital

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 
Nos. ` in crores Nos. ` in crores Nos. ` in crores

Authorised :

Equity Shares of ` 10 each 30,00,00,000 300.00 30,00,00,000 300.00 30,00,00,000 300.00 

Preference Shares of ` 10 each 20,00,00,000 200.00 20,00,00,000 200.00 20,00,00,000 200.00 

50,00,00,000 500.00 50,00,00,000 500.00 50,00,00,000 500.00 

Issued :

Equity Shares of ` 10 each 15,11,63,426 151.16 15,11,63,426 151.16 15,11,63,426 151.16 

15,11,63,426 151.16 15,11,63,426 151.16 15,11,63,426 151.16 

Subscribed and Fully Paid :

Equity Shares of ` 10 each 15,07,77,065 150.78 15,07,77,065 150.78 15,07,77,065 150.78 

Add : Forfeited shares ` 30,358

(As at March 31, 2016 : ` 30,358;
 As at April 1, 2015 : ` 30,358)  2,518  -    2,518  -    2,518  -   

15,07,79,583 150.78 15,07,79,583 150.78 15,07,79,583 150.78 

(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Advance Payment of Income-tax and Tax Deducted at Source (net)  79.92  71.14  55.38 

 79.92  71.14  55.38 

note 17 : Current Tax Assets (NET)
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As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Nos. % holding Nos. % holding Nos. % holding

Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid

   Mr. Bharat Kanaiyalal Sheth 1,57,19,490 10.43% 1,48,28,490 9.83% 1,63,28,490 10.83%

   Mr. Ravi Kanaiyalal Sheth 1,52,62,504 10.12% 1,43,62,504 9.53% 1,43,62,504 9.53%

   Nalanda India Equity Fund Limited 1,05,24,139 6.98% 1,05,24,139 6.98% 1,05,24,139 6.98%

a)	Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares :
The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ` 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share. The Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Interim dividend is paid as recommended by the Board 
of Directors.
In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

b)	Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Holding Company :

c)	 There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares.

d)	 For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared :
(i)  No shares were allotted pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash.
(ii)  No bonus shares have been issued.
(iii) 15,45,019 equity shares have been bought back during the financial year 2013-14.

e)	There are no securities convertible into equity/preference shares.

f)	Under orders from the Special Court (Trial of Offences Relating to Transactions in Securities) Act, 1992, the allotment of 2,53,522 (as at March 
31, 2016 : 2,53,522; as at April 1, 2015 : 2,53,522) rights equity shares of the Company have been kept in abeyance in accordance with Section 
126(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 till such time as the title of the bonafide owner is certified by the concerned Stock Exchanges. Additional 
40,608 (as at March 31, 2016 : 40,608; as at April 1, 2015 : 40,608) shares have also been kept in abeyance for disputed cases in consultation 
with the Bombay Stock Exchange.

g)	Employee Stock Option Scheme :
The employee stock options of Greatship (India) Limited (GIL) were granted under five different Employee Stock Option Schemes 
(‘Scheme/s’) to the employees of GIL, the Holding Company and the subsidiaries. ESOP 2008 - I Scheme was closed on March 31, 2013 
with the encashment of all the options under the scheme. All the ESOPs are in respect of GIL’s shares where each stock option is equivalent 
to one equity share.

No grant of stock options were made under any of the Schemes after April 2012 in line with the GIL’s decision to not make any further grants 
under the existing Schemes. There was no encashment or forfeiture of options under any Scheme during the year under review. 

During the previous year, as per the Encashment Scheme approved in the year 2012, the option grantees under all Schemes were given an 
opportunity to encash all or part of their vested options as on March 31, 2015 and accordingly 6,51,480 options were encashed by the option 
grantees during the financial year 2015-16. If there is no IPO by March 31, 2018, similar window would be opened to encash the remaining stock 
options (there would be no unvested stock options at that time). With this encashment, a total of 14,17,420 options have been encashed under 
the said Encashment Scheme, including 7,65,940 options encashed in 2012. With the encashment of all the outstanding stock options under 
the Scheme ESOP 2007, the Scheme stands closed as on March 31, 2016.

Total options outstanding as on March 31, 2017 is 1,51,060.
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Sr. 
No.

Particulars ESOP 2007 - II ESOP 2008 - II ESOP 2010

1 Date of Grant 28/01/08 23/10/08 23/09/10

19/03/09 30/04/11

05/05/09 24/10/11

24/07/09 27/04/12

23/10/09

28/12/09

18/03/10

30/04/10

2 Date of Board Approval 20/11/07 28/01/08 18/03/10

3 Date of Shareholders' Approval 21/11/07 31/01/08 23/04/10

4 Options approved* 2,00,000 17,10,000 10,28,900

5 Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,600 44,700 1,01,760

6 Options granted during the year  -    -    -   

7 Options cancelled/forfeited during the year  -    -    -   

8 Options exercised during the year  -    -    -   

9 Options encashed during the year  -    -    -   

10 Options outstanding at the end of the year 4,600 44,700 1,01,760

11 Exercise Price/Weighted Average Exercise Price 100 135 135

12 Exercise period from the date of vesting One year from the date of 
vesting/listing whichever 

is later

One year from the 
date of vesting/listing 

whichever is later

One year from the date of 
vesting/listing whichever 

is later
13 Exercisable at end of the year  -    -    -   

14 Method of Settlement Equity Equity/Cash Equity

15 Vesting period from the date of grant One year 20% equally over a 
period of five years  

20% equally over a 
period of five years  

16 Vesting conditions Continued employment 
with the Holding 

Company ‘The Great 
Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd. 
(includes transfer within 

group companies)

Continued employment 
with the Company or 

subsidiaries (includes 
transfer within group 

companies) 

Continued employment 
with the Company or 

subsidiaries (includes 
transfer within group 

companies)

Pursuant to the encashment scheme for Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) introduced by the GIL during 2012, 1,41,74,420 options were 
encashed at the fair value determined under the scheme. Since the encashment scheme also provides for another window to be opened 
in March 2018 to encash stock options that have vested till such date, the liability in respect of the outstanding options has also been 
measured at the fair value determined in accordance with the encashment scheme and the difference in the fair value and the exercise 
price is amortised over vesting period.

The cumulative amount of employee stock option expense amortised upto March 31, 2017 of ` 2.38 crores (Previous Year : ` 2.30 crores) 
is included in Non - current provisions.

The particulars of the various Schemes and movements during the year under review are summarised as under :
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note 20 : Other Equity

A. Summary of Other Equity	
      (Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement)

B. Nature of Reserves 
i)	 Capital Reserve : Capital Reserve created on cancellation of convertible warrants in financial year 2008-09.

ii)	  Securities Premium Reserves : Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of securities of the Group. The 
reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

iii)	 General Reserve : General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from Retained Earnings for appropriation purposes. 

iv)	 Tonnage Tax Reserve : Tonnage Tax Reserve created as per the provisions of the Section 115VT of the Income-tax Act, 1961, whereby 
a minimum of 20% of book profits from the tonnage tax activities are to be utilised for acquiring new ships within 8 years

v)	 Statutory Reserve : Statutory Reserve is created by appropriating 10% of the profit of subsidiary company The Great Eastern Chartering 
L.L.C. (FZC) as required by the implementing regulations of Sharjah Airport International Free Zone Authority. The said subsidiary 
company can discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve totals 50% of the paid up share capital. The reserve is not available 
for distribution except as provided in the Federal Law. No such transfer was made during the year as the minimum requirement of the 
reserve at 50% of the share capital has been reached.

vi)	 Retained Earnings : Retained Earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to General Reserves, 
Tonnage Tax Reserves, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.
During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Board of Directors declared and paid an interim dividend of ̀  3.60 per equity share aggregating 
to ` 60.58 crores including dividend distribution tax.
In respect of the year ended March 31, 2017, the Board of Directors propose that a dividend of ` 6.50 per equity share be paid on 
fully paid equity shares. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been 
included as a liability in these financial statements. The total outflow on this account is estimated to be ` 117.96 crores including 
dividend distribution tax.

(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

a)	Capital Reserve 21.04 21.04 21.04 

b)	Securities Premium Reserves  161.35  161.35  161.35 

c)	General Reserve 2306.39 2306.39 2206.39 

d)	Capital Redemption Reserve  240.08  240.08  240.08 

e)	Tonnage Tax Reserve under Section 115VT of the Income-tax Act, 1961 457.00 347.00 287.00 

f)	Debenture Redemption Reserve 758.75 167.50 142.50 

g)	Statutory Reserve 0.13 0.13 0.13 

h)	Retained Earnings 2391.36 2398.35 1856.92 

i)	 Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 1.26  -    -   

j)	Cash Flow Hedging Reserve (Refer Note 42) 2.01 (8.15) (8.09)

k)	Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account (7.01) (15.59) (22.94)

l)	 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 740.19 794.60 678.97 

7072.55 6412.70 5563.35 
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(` in crores)

Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance  119.67  -   

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined employee benefit plans  (0.13)  (3.25)

Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income  1.26  -   

Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign 
operations

 (54.41)  115.63 

Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging 
instruments in a cash flow hedge

 10.16  (0.06)

Movement in Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Reserve  8.58  7.35 

Closing Balance	  85.13  119.67 

Retained Earnings as at April 1, 2015 (date of transition) includes transfer from Cash Flow Hedging Reserve as detailed in Note (viii) below.

vii)	 	Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income : This comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial 
assets until the assets are derecognised or impaired.

viii)	Cash Flow Hedging Reserve : The Cash Flow Hedging Reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on 
changes in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on 
changes in fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated under the heading of Cash 
Flow Hedging Reserve will be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss.

Currency swaps derivative instruments entered against the debt exposure were accounted under previous GAAP adopting hedge 
accounting by matching the offsetting cash flows of the currency swaps against highly probable forecast revenues in foreign currency. 
The hedge accounting for the said currency swaps derivative instruments is discontinued under Ind AS since said currency swaps 
derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS due to lack of economic relationship between these two types 
of cash flows. Accordingly, the balance in Cash Flow Hedging Reserve pertaining to the said currency swaps derivative instruments 
amounting to ` 918.77 crores as at April 1, 2015 (transition date) is transferred to Retained Earnings.

ix)	 Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account : Exchange differences arising on translation of long term foreign 
currency monetary items not related to depreciable assets are transferred to Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference 
Account and shown in the financial statements under Other Equity and amortised over the balance life of such assets /liabilities 
by recognition as income/expenditure, but not beyond March 31, 2020 as per the requirement of notification issued by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs.

x)	 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve : Exchange differences relating to the translation of the results and net assets of the Group’s 
foreign operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. `) are recognised directly in Other 
Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve. Exchange differences previously accumulated 
in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (in respect of translating both the net assets of foreign operations and hedges of foreign 
operations) are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss on the disposal of the foreign operation.

C. Other Comprehensive Income accumulated in Other Equity
The disaggregation of changes in Other Comprehensive Income by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:
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note 21 : Borrowings

Non-Current BORROWINGS Current Maturities of 
Long- Term Debt

As at
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

(a) Debentures :
Secured - at amortised cost :
9.80% 2400 (Previous Years : 2500) 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of 
`10,00,000 each redeemable on July 3, 2019
[100 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of `10,00,000 each bought back 
during the year]
[Refer Notes (i) and (iv) below]

240.00

 

 250.00

 

 250.00

 

 -  -

 

 -

 

Unsecured - at amortised cost :	
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of ` 
10,00,000 each -	

i)	 8.24% 2000 Debentures redeemable on 
November 11, 2026  200.00  -    -    -    -    -   

ii)	 8.70% 2500 Debentures redeemable on 
May 6, 2026  250.00  -    -    -    -    -   

iii)	 8.24% 2000 Debentures redeemable on 
November 11, 2025  200.00  -    -    -    -    -   

iv)	 8.70% 2500 Debentures redeemable on 
May 31, 2025  250.00  -    -    -    -    -   

v)	 7.99% 2500 Debentures redeemable on 
January 18, 2025  250.00  -    -    -    -    -   

vi)	 7.99% 2500 Debentures redeemable on 
January 18, 2024  250.00  -    -    -    -    -   

vii)	 9.70% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
January 18, 2023  100.00  100.00  100.00  -    -    -   

viii)	 9.70% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
January 7, 2023  100.00  100.00  100.00  -    -    -   

ix)	 9.70%   500 Debentures redeemable on 
April 25, 2021  50.00  50.00  50.00  -    -    -   

x)	 9.70% 1500 Debentures redeemable on 
April 15, 2021  150.00  150.00  150.00  -    -    -   

xi)	 9.70% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
February 2, 2021  100.00  100.00  100.00  -    -    -   

xii)	 9.60% 2000 Debentures redeemable on 
November 10, 2019  200.00  200.00  200.00  -    -    -   

xiii)	 9.75% 2350 (Previous Years : 2500) 
Debentures redeemable on August 20, 
2019 
[150 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of  ` 10,00,000 each bought 
back during the year]

 235.00  250.00  250.00  -  -    -

(` in crores)
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(` in crores)

Non-Current BORROWINGS Current Maturities of 
Long- Term Debt

As at
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

xiv)	 9.35% 425 (Previous Years : 500) 
Debentures redeemable on February 8, 2019 
and 425 (Previous Years : 500) Debentures 
redeemable on February 8, 2018  
[150 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of  ` 10,00,000 each bought 
back during the year]

 42.50

 

 100.00

 

 100.00

 

 42.50

   

 -    -

   

xv)	 9.40% 900 (Previous Years : 1000) 
Debentures redeemable on January 6, 2019  
[100 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of ` 10,00,000 each bought 
back during the year]

 90.00

 

 100.00

 

 100.00  -

   

 -    -   

xvi)	 9.19% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
December 24, 2018  100.00  100.00  100.00  -    -    -   

xvii)	 9.35% 425 (Previous Years : 500) Debentures 
redeemable on February 8, 2019 and 
425 (Previous Years : 500) Debentures 
redeemable on February 8, 2018 
[150 Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of ` 10,00,000 each bought 
back during the year]

 42.50  100.00

 

 100.00

 

 42.50

 

 -

   

 -

   

xviii)	9.40% 1000 Debentures redeemable on 
January 6, 2018

 -    100.00  100.00
 

 100.00  -
   

 -   

[Refer Notes (ii) and (iv) below]

2850.00 1700.00 1700.00 185.00  -    -   

(b) Term Loans from Banks :	
Secured - at amortised cost :
Foreign Currency Loans from Banks
[Refer Notes (iii) and (iv) below]	

2932.16
 

3228.11
 

3746.69  694.10  862.44 1063.72
 

(c) Unamortised Finance Charges (11.79)  (20.37)  (26.99)  (3.89)  (11.24)  (11.11)

Total (a + b + c) 5770.37 4907.74 5419.70 875.21 851.20 1052.61 

Less : Amount disclosed under Note 25 : 
Other Financial Liabilities	  -    -    -    (875.21)  (851.20) (1052.61)

5770.37 4907.74 5419.70  -    -    -   
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Current BORROWINGS

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

(a) Term Loans from Bank :	
Secured - at amortised cost :
Loan repayable on demand
[Refer Note (v) below]

170.17  -    -   

170.17  -    -   

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

 -  between one to three years

      Secured Debentures 240.00  -    -   

      Unsecured Debentures 710.00 500.00 200.00

      Secured Loans from Banks 1089.24 1771.15 2028.73

2039.24 2271.15 2228.73

  -  between three to five years

      Secured Debentures  -   250.00 250.00

      Unsecured Debentures 300.00 550.00 750.00

      Secured Loans from Banks 810.90 1179.97 1447.43

1110.90 1979.97 2447.43

  -  over five years

      Secured Debentures  -    -    -   

      Unsecured Debentures 1600.00 400.00 500.00

      Secured Loans from Banks 1032.02 276.99 270.53

2632.02 676.99 770.53

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Notes :
i)	 9.80% 2400 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of ` 10,00,000 each, redeemable on July 3, 2019, are secured by 

exclusive charge on specified ships with 1.25 times cover on the book value of ships and additional security by way of mortgage on 
immovable property of the Group.

ii)	 The Group maintains unencumbered assets (including cash and cash equivalents) of market value not less than outstanding face value 
amount of the unsecured debentures.

iii)	Foreign currency loans availed from banks carry interest rates of LIBOR plus 35 to 250 bps for USD loans and LIBOR plus 62 bps for 
JPY loans. Some loans are on fixed rates basis. The principal repayments are due quarterly, half yearly and annually. These loans are 
secured by mortgage of specified vessels, a financial covenant to maintain unencumbered assets, assignment of shipbuilding contracts, 
assignment of earning, charge on earning account and insurance contracts/policies of specified vessels. The Holding Company has 
issued guarantees as securities for some loans.

iv)	The terms of repayments are as under :

v)	 Term Loans from bank shown under current borrowings represent Buyer’s Credit for a minimum tenure of 6 months repayable on demand.
vi)	 The Group does not have any continuing default in repayment of loans and interest as at the reporting date.
vii)	No loans have been guaranteed by Directors or others.

69th Annual Report 2016-17 | Consolidated Financial Statements



The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited

198	  

note 22 : PROVISIONS

note 23 : Other Liabilities

Note : 
The Group recognised the following provisions in its accounts in respect of obligations arising from past events, the settlement of which 
is expected to result in an outflow embodying economic benefits.

Note : 
Government grants represent unamortised amount of duty saved on capital goods imported, including spares, under the Serve from India 
Scheme (SFIS).

(` in crores)

Current Year Previous Year

Vessel performance/ offhire claims -

Provision has been recognised for the estimated liability for under-
performance of certain vessels and offhire claims under dispute:

Opening balance  1.27  2.82 

Add: Additions during the year  -    -   

Less: Reversed during the year  (0.57)  (1.55)

 0.70  1.27 

Non-Current PROVISIONS Current PROVISIONS

As at
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 36) 41.81 37.61 33.38 15.65 31.47 22.27

Vessel Performance/ Offhire Claims 
(Refer Note below)

 -  - - 0.70 1.27 2.82

 41.81  37.61  33.38  16.35  32.74  25.09 

Other Non-Current Liabilities Other Current Liabilities

As at
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

As at 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2016 

As at 
01/04/2015 

(a) Income Received in Advance  -    -    -   28.03 30.04 28.35

(b) Government grants (Refer Note below) 25.01 27.15 29.29  -    -    -   

(c) Other Liabilities  -    -    -   87.87 82.11 94.80

 25.01  27.15  29.29 115.90 112.15 123.15

(` in crores)

(` in crores)
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note 24 : Trade Payables
(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

(a) Dues to Micro and Small enterprises  -    -    -   

(b) Dues to others  191.23  224.27  215.96 

 191.23  224.27  215.96 

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Provision for taxation (net)  44.91  32.30  30.39 

 44.91  32.30  30.39 

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

(a) Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt (Refer Note 21)* 875.21 851.20 1052.61

(b) Liabilities towards Investor Education and Protection Fund, not due
	  - Unpaid dividend 8.15 9.98 6.58

(c) Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings	 144.32 88.63 60.34

(d) Mark-to-Market Losses on Derivative Contracts 655.00 1040.76 960.23

(e) Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax	 4.75 4.82 3.68

1687.43 1995.39 2083.44

Notes :
i)	 According to the information available with the Group regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the ‘Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’, no amount is overdue as at the reporting date, to Micro and Small Enterprises on account 
of principal interest.

ii)	 Trade payables are recognised at their original invoiced amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. Trade payables 
are considered to be of short duration and are not discounted and the carrying values are assumed to approximate their fair values.

iii)	Trade payables are subject to confirmation, reconciliation and adjustments, if any.

note 25 : Other Financial Liabilities

*As at March 31, 2016, Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt include ` 74.53 crores relating to a Long-Term Debt reclassified as current 
due to proposed refinancing arrangement.

note 26 : Current Tax Liabilities (NET)
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(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Note 27 : Revenue from Operations

Note 29 : Employee Benefit Expenses

Note 28 : Other Income

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Revenue from -

- Freight and Demurrage 766.27 1435.93 

- Charter Hire 2304.42 2332.61 

3070.69 3768.54 

(b) Other Operating Revenue 46.17 39.23 

3116.86 3807.77 

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Gain/(Loss) on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 38.53 25.15 

(b) Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency and Derivatives Transactions (net)  284.35 (39.82)

(c) Dividend from Units in Mutual Funds (at FVTPL) 0.90 1.39 

(d) Interest Income -

 - on Bank Deposits (at amortised cost) 55.43 45.54 

  - on Others (at amortised cost) 1.46 1.13 

56.89 46.67 

(e) Gain/(Loss) on sale of current investments (at FVTPL) 122.66 81.95 

(f) Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances Written Back (net)  6.06  -   

(g) Miscellaneous Income 2.88 3.38 

512.27 118.72 

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Salaries and Wages 536.84 539.92 

(b) Contribution to Provident and Other funds (Refer Note 36) 21.71 18.17 

(c) Share based payments to employees 0.08 0.55 

(d) Staff Welfare Expenses 38.14 33.77 

596.77 592.41 

(` in crores)
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Note 30 : Finance Costs

Note 32 : Impairment Loss

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Interest Cost

Total interest expense  331.12  278.74 

Less: amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets  (3.86)  (9.18)

 327.26  269.56 

(b) Other Borrowing Costs  50.36  18.20 

 377.62  287.76 

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Note : 
The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally is 4.76% p.a. (Previous Year : 4.97% p.a.).

Note 31 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 677.59 607.49 

(b) Amortisation of intangible assets 0.32 0.44 

677.91 607.93 

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  184.33  105.37 

(b) Impairment loss on asset held for sale  -    58.32 

 184.33  163.69 

Notes : 
(i) During the current year, the Group has reviewed the carrying amount of its fleet consequent to the steep fall in oil prices and resultant fall 

in charter hire rate for its supply vessels as well as the fall in market value of such vessels, the Group has made provision for impairment 
loss on eight (Previous Year : four) supply vessels aggregating to ` 184.33 crores (Previous Year : ` 105.37 crores) as the carrying 
amount of the said vessels was lower than its recoverable amount.

(ii) During the current year, the Group had agreed to sell “Greatship Disha” at a price lower than its carrying amount, consequently the Group 
has booked an impairment loss of ` 9.65 crores (Previous Year : ` ‘NIL’) to write down the asset to its net realisable value. The vessel 
was delivered in the subsequent quarter.
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Note 33 : Other Expenses

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Fuel Oil and Water 192.80 287.86 

(b) Port, Light and Canal Dues 109.80 123.02 

(c) Stevedoring and Cargo Expenses 0.13 0.43 

(d) Hire of Chartered Ships 89.84 105.83 

(e) Brokerage and Commission 13.85 20.16 

(f) Agency Fees 7.98 8.53 

(g) Consumption of Spares and Stores 196.16 203.12 

(h) Repairs and Maintenance -

     - Fleet 74.73 74.42 

     - Buildings 4.35 6.19 

     - Others 11.35 10.29 

90.43 90.90 

(i) Insurance -

     - Fleet Insurance and Protection Club Fees 53.68 57.68 

     - Others 2.68 2.58 

56.36 60.26 

( j) (Reversal)/Provision for Loss on Cancelled Contract (7.84)  7.84 

( j) Loss on Cancelled Contract 7.84  -   

(k) Rent 7.10 6.89 

(l) Rates and Taxes 0.50 0.44 

(m) Bad Debts and Advances Written off 0.01 0.41 

(n) Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances (net)  1.64  10.34 

(o) Travelling Expenses 45.99 41.73 

(p) Loss on Cancellation of Hedging Contract 0.31 0.59 

(q) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility activities 9.59 6.75 

(r) Miscellaneous Expenses 88.43 91.91 

910.92 1067.01 

(` in crores)
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Current Year Previous Year

(a) Current Tax  125.66  124.80 

(b) Deferred Tax  0.96  0.91 

(c) MAT Credit Utilised -  (15.00)

126.62 110.71 

Note 34 : Tax Expense

The Reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss is as follows:

Current Year Previous Year

Profit before Income Tax 881.58 1207.69 

Indian statutory income tax rate 34.608% 34.608%

Expected income tax expense as per Indian statutory income tax rate  305.10  417.96 

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense 
to reported income tax expense :

Tax on Net Profit attributable to tonnage tax activity (net of Deemed 
Tonnage Income chargeable to tax separately)  (84.82)  (229.21)

Items liable to tax in the year of settlement/payment  (48.32)  38.55 

Income exempt from tax (net of expenses disallowed)  (44.03)  (102.98)

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  8.94  10.89 

Tax on income at different rates  0.16  (7.23)

(Gain)/ Loss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment / Capital 
Items Considered Separately  (14.53)  (7.58)

Others  4.12  5.31 

Provision for Current Tax and Deferred Tax as per Books 126.62 125.71 

Pursuant to the introduction of Section 115VA under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the Group has opted for computation of its income from 
shipping activities under the Tonnage Tax Scheme. Thus, income from the business of operating ships is assessed on the basis of the 
Deemed Tonnage Income of the Group and no deferred tax is applicable to such income as there are no timing differences.

(` in crores)
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note 35 : basic and diluted earnings per share 

Current Year Previous Year

(a) Net Profit After Tax (` in crores) 754.96 1096.98

(b) Number of Equity Shares

     (i) Basic Earning per Share :

          Number of Equity Shares as at the beginning and end of the year 15,07,77,065 15,07,77,065

          Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares during the year 15,07,77,065 15,07,77,065

     (ii) Diluted Earning per Share :

           Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares during the year 15,07,77,065 15,07,77,065

           Add : Rights Shares kept in abeyance 2,94,130 2,94,130

           Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares during the year 15,10,71,195 15,10,71,195

(c) Face Value of Equity Share ` 10 ` 10

(d) Earnings per Share

     - Basic ` 50.07 ` 72.76

     - Diluted ` 49.97 ` 72.61

Note 36 : Employee Benefit Plans

A) Defined Contribution Plans :
	 The Group has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year :

Current Year Previous Year

Contribution to Employees Provident Fund  7.82  7.51 

Contribution to Employees Superannuation Fund  4.66  4.03 

Contribution to National Pension Scheme  1.13  0.94 

Contribution to Seamen’s Provident Fund  1.48  0.84 

Contribution to Seamen’s Annuity Fund  1.36  1.28 

Contribution to Seamen’s Rehabilitation Fund  0.58  0.48 

Contribution to Seamen’s Gratuity Fund  0.31 0.34 

(` in crores)

i) General description of Significant Defined Contribution Plans :

Provident Fund :
In accordance with Indian law, all eligible employees of the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined 
contribution plan in which both the employee and employer (at a determined rate) contribute monthly. The Group contributes as specified 
under the law to the Provident Fund where set up as a trust is liable for future provident fund benefits to the extent of its annual contribution 
and any shortfall in fund assets based on government specified minimum rates of return relating to current period service and recognises 
such contributions and shortfall, if any, as an expense in the year incurred. There is no deficiency in the interest cost as the present value 
of the expected future earnings on the fund is greater than the expected amount to be credited to the individual members based on the 
expected guaranteed rates of interest. The Group also contributes to Provident Fund Authorities for eligible employees of some of its 
subsidiary Companies.
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Seamen’s Provident Fund :
The Group’s contribution towards Provident Fund in respect of seamen i.e. crew who sail on Group’s ships is paid to the Seamen’s  Provident 
Fund as per the National Maritime Board Agreement.

Seamen’s Annuity Fund :
The Group’s contribution towards Annuity in respect of seamen is paid to the Seamen’s Annuity Fund as per the National Maritime 
Board Agreement.

Seamen’s Rehabilitation Fund :
The Group’s contribution towards rehabilitation in respect of seamen is paid to the National Maritime Board Rehabilitation and Welfare 
Trust as per the National Maritime Board Agreement.

Seamen’s Gratuity Fund :
The Group’s contribution towards Gratuity in respect of seamen is paid to the Seafarer’s Welfare Fund Society as per the National Maritime 
Board Agreement.

Superannuation Fund :
In addition to gratuity benefits, employees have the option to become a member of the Superannuation Fund Trust set up by the Group and 
receive benefits thereunder. It is a defined contribution plan. The Group makes contributions to the trust in respect of the said employees 
until their retirement or resignation. The Group recognises such contributions as an expense when incurred. The Group has no further 
obligation beyond its contribution.

National Pension Scheme (NPS) :
NPS is an additional option for offering retirement benefits to the employees. NPS is designed on defined contribution basis wherein the 
Group contributes to the employees account.
There is no defined benefit that would be available at the time of exit from the system and the accumulated wealth depends on the 
contributions made and the income generated from the investment of such wealth. The Group recognises such contributions as an 
expense when incurred. The Group has no further obligation beyond its contribution.

B) Defined Benefit Plans and Other Long Term Benefits :
Valuations in respect of Gratuity, Pension Plan for Whole-time Directors and Leave Encashment have been carried out by an independent 
actuary as at the Balance Sheet date under the Projected Unit Credit method, based on the following assumptions :

Actuarial 
Assumptions 

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

 As at 
31/03/2017

 As at 
31/03/2016

 As at 
01/04/2015

 As at 
31/03/2017

 As at 
31/03/2016

 As at 
01/04/2015

 As at 
31/03/2017

 As at 
31/03/2016

 As at 
01/04/2015

(a) Discount Rate (p.a.) 6.69%-
6.94%

7.46%-
7.69%

7.80%-
8.00%

6.69%-
6.94%

7.46%-
7.69%

7.80%-
8.00%

6.69%-
6.94%

7.46%-
7.69%

7.80%-
8.00%

(b) Salary Escalation Rate 3.00%-
6.00%

4.00%-
6.00%

4.00%-
6.00%

- - - 5.00%-
6.00%

5.00%-
6.00%

5.00%-
6.00%

(c) Mortality IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

IALM - 
Ultimate 
2006-08

(d) Withdrawal Rate 0.50%-
8.00%

0.50%-
8.00%

0.50%-
8.00%

- - - 0.67%-
8.00%

1.33%-
8.00%

1.33%-
8.00%

(e) Expected average 
remaining service 
(in years)

 7.84-
24.05 

 8.13-
24.25 

 8.34-
24.28 

 -  -  -  7.84-
10.04 

 8.08-
8.13 

 8.34-
8.38 
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i) Changes in present value of obligations :

ii) Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets :

iii) Funded Status :

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Liability at the beginning of the year  29.07  24.02  33.01  30.27  1.74  1.40 

Current Service Cost  4.63  4.59  -    -    0.89  0.90 

Interest Cost  2.16  1.81  2.46  2.31  0.13  0.09 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations  (0.66)  0.35  3.30  2.12  (0.66)  (0.01)

Benefits Paid  (1.63)  (1.76)  (1.69)  (1.69)  (0.05)  (0.65)

Benefits Transferred in  0.02  0.06  -    -    -    0.01 

Liability at the end of the year  33.59  29.07  37.08  33.01  2.05  1.74 

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the 
beginning of the year

 30.96  26.51  -    -    -    -   

Adjustment to Opening Balance  (0.13)  (0.07)  -    -    -    -   

Return on Plan Assets excluding 
amount included in interest income

 2.47  (0.74)  -    -    -    -   

Interest Income  2.19  2.14  -    -    -    -   

Employer’s Contributions  0.22  4.88  1.69  1.69  0.05  0.66 

Benefits Paid  (1.62)  (1.76)  (1.69)  (1.69)  (0.05)  (0.66)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end
of the year

 34.09  30.96  -    -    -    -   

Gratuity

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation  33.59  29.07  24.02 

Fair value of plan assets  (34.09)  (30.96)  (26.51)

(Surplus) / Deficit of Plan assets over obligations  (0.50)  (1.89)  (2.49)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)
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iv) Remeasurement of the net defined liability / (asset) :

vi) Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet :

v) Actual Return on Plan Assets :

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

(Gain)/loss on obligation due to change in 
demographic assumptions  (0.29)  -    -    -    -    -   

(Gain)/loss on obligation due to change in financial 
assumptions  1.61  (0.45)  -    -    0.08  (0.09)

(Gain)/loss on obligation due to change in experience 
adjustments  (1.98)  0.80  3.30  2.12  (0.74)  0.08 

Total Actuarial (gain)/loss  (0.66)  0.35  3.30  2.12  (0.66)  (0.01)

Gratuity

Current Year Previous Year

Return on Plan Assets excl. interest Income  2.47  (0.74)

Interest Income  2.19  2.14 

Actual Return on Plan Assets  4.66  1.40 

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

 As at 
31/03/2017

 As at 
31/03/2016

 As at 
01/04/2015

 As at 
31/03/2017

 As at 
31/03/2016

 As at 
01/04/2015

 As at 
31/03/2017

 As at 
31/03/2016

 As at 
01/04/2015

Liability at the end of 
the year  33.59  29.07  24.02 37.08  33.01  30.27  2.05  1.74  1.40 

Fair Value of Plan Assets
at the end of the year  34.09  30.96  26.61  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Amount not recognised
in the Balance Sheet  -    -    0.11  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(Asset)/Liability
recognised in the
Balance Sheet (net) (0.50)  (1.89) (2.38) 37.08  33.01  30.27  2.05  1.74  1.40 

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

vii) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss :

Gratuity Pension Plan Leave Encashment

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current Service Cost  4.63  4.59  -    -    0.89  0.90 

Net Interest  (0.03)  (0.33)  2.46  2.31  0.13  0.09 

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss to be
recognised  -    -    -    -    (0.66)  (0.01)

Expenses recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss  4.60  4.26  2.46  2.31  0.36  0.98 

(` in crores)
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viii)	General description of Significant Defined Benefit Plans :
Gratuity Plan :
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Group on superannuation, death, permanent disablement or resignation in terms of 
the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Group’s Scheme whichever is more beneficial. Benefit would be paid at the 
time of separation based on the last drawn basic salary.
The Group’s investment strategy in respect of its funded plans is implemented within the framework of the applicable statutory 
requirements. The plans expose the Group to a number of actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and 
inflation risk. The Group does an Asset - Liability matching study each year  in which the consequences of the strategic investment 
policies are analysed in terms of risk and return profiles.

Retirement Benefit Scheme including Pension Plan :
Under the Group’s Retirement Benefit Scheme for the Whole-time Directors, all the eligible Whole-time Directors are entitled to the 
benefits of the scheme only after attaining the age of 62 years, except for retirement due to physical disability or death while in office, 
in which case, the benefits shall start on his retirement due to such physical disability or death. The benefits are in the form of monthly 
pension @ 50% of his last drawn monthly salary subject to maximum of ` 1.25 crores p.a. (Previous Year : ` 1.25 crores p.a.) during his 
lifetime. If he predeceases the spouse, she will be paid monthly pension @ 50% of his last drawn pension during her lifetime. Benefits 
include reimbursement of medical expenses for self and spouse, overseas medical treatment upto ` 0.50 crore for self/spouse, office 
space including office facilities in the Group’s office premises. Benefits also include use of Group’s car including reimbursement of 
driver’s salary and other related expenses during his lifetime and in the event of his demise, his spouse will be entitled to avail the said 
benefit during her lifetime.

Leave Encashment :
“All eligible union grade employees of the Holding Company had an option to freeze the accumulated leave balance as on June 30, 
2008. Such frozen accumulated leave balance will be encashed as per the last drawn basic salary at the time of superannuation, 
death, permanent disablement, resignation or promotion to the non-union category. With effect from April 1, 2012, all eligible non 
union employees of the Holding Company have an option to freeze their leave accumulation days on 30th June every year and such 
frozen accumulated leave balance will be encashed as per the basic salary for the month of June of the relevant year for which leave 
was frozen at the time of superannuation, death, permanent disablement or resignation. For all union and non-union grade employees 
of Holding Company, maximum leave that can be carried forward is 15 days. The leave over and above 15 days is encashed and paid 
to employees on June 30th of every year. In case of Subsidiary Company, all eligible employees can carry forward and encash leave 
upto superannuation, death, permanent disablement and resignation subject to maximum accumulation allowed at 15 days. The leave 
over and above 15 days for all employees is encashed and paid to employees, subject to maximum of 20 days on June 30, every year.

ix) The fair values of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows :
(` in crores)

Gratuity

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Central Government securities  0.39  0.53  0.66 

State Government securities  -    0.08  0.08 

Public Sector Bonds  1.00  1.00  1.49 

HDFC Group Unit Linked Plan  32.70  29.35  24.28 

Total  34.09  30.96  26.51 
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(` in crores)

(` in crores)

x) Sensitivity Analysis :

xi) The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year ended March 31, 2017 as follows : 

Present Value of Obligations
Discount Rate Salary Escalation Rate

+1% -1% +1% -1%

Gratuity  31.04  36.42  35.49  31.79 

Pension  33.52  41.62  -    -   

Leave Encashment  1.93  2.17  2.17  1.93 

Present Value of Obligations First 
Year

Second 
Year

Third 
Year

Fourth 
Year

Fifth 
Year

Six to Ten 
Years

Gratuity  3.85  2.73  3.43  2.60  3.56  12.55 

Pension  1.69  1.69  1.69  1.69  1.69  8.47 

Leave Encashment  1.14  0.17  0.38  0.17  0.21  0.11 

Note 37 : Segment Reporting

The Group has identified two business segments as reportable segments on the basis of nature of business. The business segments 
comprise 1) Shipping business and 2) Offshore business.
The segments are defined as components of Group for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the 
Managing Directors of the segments in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing information.
Revenues and expenses attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segments. 
Assets and liabilities that are attributable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segments.
a) Primary segment reporting by business segment :

Shipping Offshore Total

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year

Revenue :

Total Revenue 2234.31 2131.14 1424.61 1875.80 3658.92 4006.94

Less : Inter Segment Revenue 29.79 80.45

Net Revenue 3629.13 3926.49

Results :

Profit before Interest and Tax 857.85 745.67 401.35 749.78 1259.20 1495.45

Less : Interest 377.62 287.76

Total Profit before tax 881.58 1207.69

Provision for Taxation :

 - Current tax 125.66 124.80

 - Deferred Tax 0.96 0.91

 - MAT Credit Utilised  -    (15.00)

Net Profit 754.96 1096.98

Other Information :

Capital Expenditure 2061.01 789.09 36.28 40.83 2097.29 829.92

Depreciation 373.61 287.65 304.30 320.28 677.91 607.93

Impairment  -    -   184.33 163.69 184.33 163.69

(` in crores)
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b) Secondary segment reporting by geographical segment :

(ii) Substantial assets of the Group are ships/rigs, which are operating across the world, in view of which they can not be identified by any 
particular geographical segment.

(iii) In view of (ii) above the total cost incurred during the year, geographical segment-wise is not ascertainable.

note 38 : operating lease

Operating Lease Commitments – where the Group is a lessee
The Group has taken premises and equipments on leave and license basis which is similar in substance to an operating lease. The lease 
has varying terms and renewal rights. The particulars of leasing arrangement are as under :

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Assets

 - Shipping 9047.56 7261.21 6977.38

 - Offshore 6147.85 6588.33 6628.72

Total 15195.41 13849.54 13606.10

Liabilities

 - Shipping 987.08 1305.06 795.61

 - Offshore 215.44 273.05 662.09

Total 1202.52 1578.11 1457.70

SEGMENT-WISE REVENUE : Current Year Previous year 

- Revenue outside India 1273.19 1481.96

- Revenue within India 2355.94 2444.53

3629.13 3926.49

(` in crores)

(` in crores)

Details  As at 31/03/2017  As at 31/03/2016  As at 01/04/2015

(a) Total Future Minimum Lease payments

  - Not later than 1 year  11.09  19.60  22.40

  - Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  17.20  28.53  6.00

  - Later than 5 years  -  -  -

28.29 46.08 26.31

(` in crores)

(b) Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ` 19.49 crores (Previous Year ` 25.10 crores).

(c) Vessels taken/given on time charter hire are considered as operating lease.

(i)
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note 39 : RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(I) List of Related Parties

(a) Key Management Personnel and close members of their family in employment with the Holding Company as on 
      March 31, 2017:

Mr. K. M. Sheth - Non - Executive Chairman;

- Father of Mr. Bharat K. Sheth and Mr. Ravi K. Sheth

Mr. Bharat K. Sheth - Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. G. Shivakumar - Executive Director and CFO

Mr. Tapas Icot - Executive Director and President-Shipping

Mr. Jayesh Trivedi - Company Secretary

Mr. Ravi K. Sheth - Non - Executive Director of Holding Company (w.e.f. April 1, 2015);

- Executive Director of Subsidiary company;

- Son of Mr. K. M. Sheth and brother of Mr. Bharat K. Sheth

Mr. Berjis Desai - Non - Executive Director

Mr. Cyrus Guzder - Non - Executive Director

Mr. Farrokh Kavarana - Non - Executive Director

Mrs. Rita Bhagwati - Non - Executive Director

Dr. Shankar Acharya - Non - Executive Director

Mr. Vineet Nayyar - Non - Executive Director

Mr. Rahul R. Sheth - Son of Mr. Ravi K. Sheth

Ms. Nirja B. Sheth - Daughter of Mr. Bharat K. Sheth

(b) Other related parties :

Employees’ Benefit Plans :

The Provident Fund of The Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd

The Great Eastern Shipping Co Ltd Employees Gratuity Fund

The Great Eastern Shipping Co Limited Executives Superannuation Fund

The Great Eastern Shipping Co Ltd Floating Staff Superannuation Fund

The Great Eastern Shipping Co Ltd Staff Superannuation Fund

Greatship (India) Limited  Employees Gratuity Trust

Nature of Transactions

Other Related 
Parties 

Key Management 
Personnel and their close 

family members
Current 

Year
Previous 

Year
Current 

Year
Previous 

Year

Contribution to employees post employment benefit plans  8.11  11.40  -    -   

Compensation to key management personnel and close 
members of their family
- Short-term benefits  -    -    12.36  12.08 

- Post-employment benefits (Refer note below)  -    -    5.42  3.77 

- Share based payment  -    -    -    0.29 

- Sitting Fees paid  -    -    0.42  0.24 

- Commission paid  -    -    12.67  13.55 

- Dividend paid  -    -    11.93  9.48 

(` in crores)
(II)  Transactions with Related Parties

(a)
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note 40 : capital and other commitments

(a) Estimated amount of contracts, net of advances paid thereon amounting to ` 12.76 crores (Previous Year : ` 134.52 crores), remaining 
to be executed on capital account and not provided for ` 48.48 crores (Previous Year : ` 480.53 crores).

(b) Other commitments oustanding on account of Corporate Social Responsibility obligations amounting to ` 6.69 crores (Previous Year 
:` 9.70 crores)

note 41 : Contingent Liabilities

Outstanding balances
Other Related 

Parties
Key Management Personnel and 

their close family members
As at

31/03/2017
As at

31/03/2016
As at

01/04/2015 
As at

31/03/2017
As at

31/03/2016
As at

01/04/2015
Payables

- Employees post employment benefit plans  0.65  0.22  0.27  -    -    -   

- Commission payable  -    -    -    12.67  13.55  12.03 

- Provision for retirement benefits  -    -    -   37.08  33.02  30.27 

(` in crores)

(b)

Sr. No. Particulars  As at 31/03/2017  As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015
Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts :

(a) Sales Tax demands under BST Act, CST Act and VAT Act. 15.24  90.98  90.98

(b) Demand from the Office of the Collector & District 
Magistrate, Mumbai City and from Brihanmumbai 
Mahanagarpalika towards transfer charges for transfer of 
premises not acknowledged by a Company in the Group.

 4.34  4.34  4.34

(c) Demand for Custom Duty disputed by the respective 
Companies
[The Holding Company has given bank guarantees 
amounting to ` 3.63 crores (as at March 31, 2016 : ` 3.63 
crores; as at April 1, 2015 : ` 3.63 crores) against the said 
Custom Duty demand]

 21.93  22.94  22.94

(d) Service Tax Demands disputed by the respective Companies  405.30  410.05  310.81

(e) Income Tax Demands for various Assessment Years 
disputed by the respective Companies

 57.34  40.63  22.52

(f) Demand for wharfage charges against which the 
Company in the Group has tendered a bank guarantee. 
Stay obtained under a Writ Petition filed against Chennai 
Port Trust for restraining encashment of bank guarantee.

 0.99  0.99  0.99

Guarantees :

(a) Guarantees given by banks - performance guarantees 
and bid bonds.

 138.56  214.27  191.86

(b) Guarantees given to banks on behalf of subsidiaries.  -  -  14.57

Notes :
i)	 It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the 

respective proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.
ii)	 The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
iii)	The Group’s pending litigations comprise of claims pertaining to proceedings pending with Income Tax, Custom, Sales Tax /VAT, Service 

Tax and other authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where 
provisions were required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Group does not expect 
the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial results.

(` in crores)

Note :
The above includes, provision for retirement pension benefits payable ` 4.17 crores (Previous year : ` 2.65 crores) on the basis of 
actuarial valuation as per the revised Retirement Benefits Scheme approved by the Board of Directors.
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note 42 : Financial Instruments
The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and 
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instruments are disclosed in Note 1(p) to 
the financial statements :

A. Financial Assets and Liabilities :
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as follows :

(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Financial Assets : 

Measured at Amortised Cost

   - Trade Receivables 208.93 307.79 334.62

   - Cash and Cash Equivalents 1480.38 792.97 759.03

   - Other Bank Balances 1986.43 2152.12 1635.07

   - Other Non-Current Financial Assets 35.47 107.44 110.43

Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss	

   - Investments in Mutual Funds 871.58 911.80 1321.43

Measured at Fair value through OCI

   - Investments in Quoted Equity Shares 3.50  -    -   

Total 4586.29 4272.12 4160.58

Financial Liabilities :

Measured at Amortised Cost

   - Non-Current Borrowings 5770.37 4907.74 5419.70

   - Current Borrowings 170.17  -    -   

   - Trade payables 191.23 224.27 215.96

   - Other Financial liabilities 1032.43 954.63 1123.21

Derivative instruments in hedging relationship

   - Interest Rate Swaps (3.62) 8.79 13.43

   - Forward  Buy Contracts 2.03  -    -   

   - Forward  Sell Contracts 0.13 (1.02) (0.30)

   - Bunker Hedging  -    -   0.13

Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship

   - Other Financial liabilities 656.46 1032.99 946.97

Total 7819.20 7127.40 7719.10

Carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade payables as at March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 
1, 2015 approximate the fair values because of their short term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of other 
bank balances, borrowings and other financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost is not significant in each of the 
years presented.
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B. Fair value hierarchy :
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or 
unobservable and consists of the following three levels :
  > Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
  > Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
     prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
  > Level 3 - Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using
      a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same
      instrument nor are they based on available market data.

The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

(` in crores)

As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Financial Assets : 

Measured at Level 1

 - Measured at Fair value through OCI

   - Investments in Quoted Equity Shares 3.50  -    -   

Measured at Level 2

 - Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss

      - Investments in mutual funds 871.58 911.80 1321.43

Total 875.08 911.80 1321.43

Financial Liabilities : 

Measured at Level 2

Derivative instruments in hedging relationship

   - Interest Rate Swaps (3.62) 8.79 13.43

   - Forward  Buy Contracts 2.03  -    -   

   - Forward  Sell Contracts 0.13 (1.02) (0.30)

   - Bunker Hedging  -    -   0.13

Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship

   - Other Financial liabilities 656.46 1032.99 946.97

Total 655.00 1040.76 960.23

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts, currency and interest rate swaps and options to hedge its exposure to the movements 
in foreign exchange rates. The use of these foreign exchange forward contracts, currency and interest rate swaps and options reduces the 
risk or the cost to the Group and the Group does not use foreign exchange forward contracts, currency and interest rate swaps and options 
for trading or speculation purposes.
The Group has identified certain derivative contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of firm commitments and highly probable 
forecast transactions and the interest rate swaps as hedged instruments that qualify as effective cash flow hedges. The mark-to-market 
gain/(loss) on such derivative contracts is recorded in the Hedging Reserve.
The Group also uses commodity futures contracts for hedging the exposure to bunker price risk.
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(i) Derivative instruments in hedging relationship (Cash Flow Hedges)
(a) Commodity Futures Contracts for Import of Bunker :

(b) Interest Rate Swap Contracts :

(c) Forward Exchange Contracts : 

(d) Spot Currency Contracts :

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total No. of contracts outstanding  -    -    -    -    4  -   

No. of units in MT under above contracts  -    -    -    -   12000.00  -   
Amount recognised in Hedging Reserve 
(loss)/gain (` in crores) 
Maturity Period

 -    -    -    -    (0.13)  -   

 -    -    -    -    Upto 1 Year  -   

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total No. of contracts outstanding  10  -    -    24  -    12 

Foreign Currency Value (USD in million)  17.972  -    -    12.000  -    12.000 

Amount recognised in Hedging Reserve 
(loss)/gain (` in crores) 

 (2.16)  -    -    1.02  -    0.30 

Maturity Period  Upto 1 Year  -    -    Upto 1 Year  -    Upto 1 Year 

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total No. of contracts outstanding  1  -    1  -    -    -   

Foreign Currency Value (USD in million)  9.664  -    2.007  -    -    -   

Amount recognised in Hedging Reserve 
(loss)/gain (` in crores) 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Maturity Period  Upto 1 month  -    Upto 1 month  -    -    -   

Details As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015

Total No. of contracts outstanding  22  13  18 

Principal Notional Amount (USD in million)  299.019  172.800  267.568 

Amount recognised in Hedging Reserve (loss)/gain (` in crores)  4.18  (9.17)  (8.25)

Maturity Period  Upto 7 Years  Upto 5 Years  Upto 6 Years 

The derivative contracts mentioned under ‘(i) Derivative instruments in hedging relationship (Cash flow Hedges) above, having been 
entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of firm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions and the interest rate swaps and 
forward exchange contracts have been designated as hedged instruments that qualify as effective cash flow hedges. The mark-to-market 
gain on these foreign exchange derivative contracts outstanding as at March 31, 2017,  amounting to ` 2.01 crores (as at March 31, 2016 :  
loss of ` 8.15 crores ; as at April 1, 2015 : loss of ` 8.09 crores) has been recorded in the Hedging Reserve.
The interest rate swaps are entered into to hedge the floating monthly, quarterly and half yearly interest payments on borrowings. Fair 
value gains/(losses) on the interest rate swaps recognised in the Hedging Reserve are transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss as 
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(b) Currency Swap Contracts (INR to USD) :

(c) Forward Exchange Option Contracts : 

Details CURRENCY As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Total No. of contracts outstanding 1  5  9 

Principal Notional Amount (JPY in 
million)

JPY/USD 1148.500 3598.103 7864.243 

Gain/(Loss) recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss during the year (` in 
crores)

1.65 0.26 

Maturity Period Upto 1 Year  Upto 3 Years  

Details CURRENCY As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Total No. of contracts outstanding 35 13 13 

Principal Notional Amount (` in crores) INR/USD 3020.00 1700.00 1700.00 

Gain/(Loss) recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss during the 
year (` in crores)

320.07 (120.97)

Maturity Period Upto 10 Years Upto 7 Years

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total No. of contracts outstanding  -    2  -    3  -    1 

Foreign Currency Value (USD in million)  -    20.00  -    30.00  -    12.00 

Gain/(Loss) recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss during the year (` in 
crores) 

-  5.72 -  1.45 

Maturity Period  -    Upto 1 year  -    Upto 1 year  -    

part of interest expense over the period of borrowings.
Gains/(losses) on forward exchange contracts and spot currency contracts recognised in the Hedging Reserve are transferred to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on the occurrence of the underlying cash flow, except for forwards used to hedge highly probable forecast 
foreign currency purchases relating to construction of new vessels, whose gains/(losses) are included in the cost of the assets and 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the estimated useful lives as part of depreciation expense.

(ii) Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship
(a) Currency Swap Contracts (JPY to USD) :
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The currency swap derivative contracts and Forward Exchange Option Contracts mentioned under ‘(ii) Derivative instruments not in 
hedging relationship’ above,  economically hedge the underlying exposures but hedge accounting is not opted for the same.
The currency swap derivative contracts were entered into to economically hedge the JPY and INR debt by converting the same into 
USD liability.
The Forward Exchange Option Contracts were entered into to hedge highly probable forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency.	

Gains / losses on the derivative contracts mentioned under (ii) above, are transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The mark-to-
market gain on these derivative contracts outstanding as on March 31, 2017 amounting to ` 327.44 crores (as at March 31, 2016 : loss of 
` 118.00  crores) has been recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Market risk 
(i) Foreign currency risk

Since the majority of the revenues of the Group are denominated in US dollars, there is a translation risk as the Group has to report its 
financial performance in INR. A significant part of this exposure is hedged by denominating most of its debt servicing obligations in U.S. 
Dollars and incurring some of its operating and repair costs in foreign currency. The net currency exposure is then managed actively 
using hedged products like foreign exchange forwards and option contracts. The tenure of these contracts is up to one year.	

The Group exposure to unhedged foreign currency as on March 31, 2017 is listed as under

(d)  Forward Exchange Contracts :

Details
As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale Purchase Sale
Total No. of contracts outstanding  -    -    -    7  -    12 

Foreign Currency Value (USD in million)  -    -    -    19.00  -    60.00 

Gain/(Loss) recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss during the 
year (` in crores) 

 -    -    -    1.26      

Maturity Period  -    -    -    Upto 1 Year      

Details CURRENCY As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

  Loan Liabilities and Payables  AED 0.963 0.418 0.646

 AUD 0.033 0.004 0.007

 BRL 22.000 21.000 19.000

 CAD 0.122  -    -   

 CHF 0.037 0.008 0.001

 CNY - 0.001  -   

 DKK 0.584 2.431 0.734

 EUR 0.351 0.695 0.369

 GBP 0.082 0.019 0.047

 JPY 58.673  1503.967 3043.443

 NOK 0.104 0.316 0.477

 SEK - 0.033 0.004
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Sensitivity Analysis :
A 5% strengthening / weakening of Indian Rupee against key currencies to which the Group is exposed (net of hedge), with all other variables 
being held constant, would have led to approximately an gain / loss of ` 153.34 crores (Previous Year : ` 120.50 crores).

(ii) Interest rate risk
External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs) raised by the Group are based on floating rate and thus the Group is exposed to changes in interest 
rates. Group has a system for taking suitable hedges through fixed rate interest swaps to minimise its effective borrowing costs.
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined to assess the interest rate risk on floating rate borrowings and derivative instruments 
outstanding at the end of the reporting period.  The impact of change in floating interest rate  by 50 basis point on the Group’s annual interest 
liability would be ` 11.73 crores (Previous Year : ` 15.39 crores). 

(iii) Price risk
The  Group is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in debt mutual funds. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the 
future market values of these investments.

Details CURRENCY As at 31/03/2017 As at 31/03/2016 As at 01/04/2015 

 SGD 2.858 1.784 4.058

 USD 860.101  678.019 745.457

 ZAR 0.066  -    -   

  Receivables  AED 0.046 0.038 0.088

 AUD 0.033 0.004  -   

 BRL 2.000 2.000 5.000

 CAD 0.110  -    -   

 CHF 0.032 0.032  -   

 DKK 0.022 0.103  -   

 EUR 0.023 0.353 0.928

 GBP 0.027  -   0.042

 JPY 10.157 5.105 6.208

 NOK 0.009 0.053 0.249

 SGD 0.019 0.022 0.534

 USD 36.323  33.672 28.847

 ZAR 0.066  -    -   

  Bank Balances  USD 361.453 302.827 203.720

 GBP  -   0.075 0.081

 EUR  -   0.298 0.269

 AED 0.167 0.132 0.406

 SGD 0.264 0.165 0.153

 NOK  -   0.082 0.243

 DKK  -   0.164 0.070

(in millions)
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Sensitivity Analysis :
A 1% increase in prices would have led to approximately an additional gain of ` 8.63 crores (Previous Year : ` 8.86 crores) in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. A 1% decrease in prices would have led to an equal but opposite effect.	

(iv) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The major 
class of financial asset of the Group is trade receivables. For credit exposures to customer, management assesses the credit quality of the 
customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments is the carrying amount 
of that class of financial instruments presented on the statement of financial position.

(v) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk may arise from inability to meet financial obligations, including loan repayments and payments for vessel acquisitions. This is 
dealt with by keeping low leverage, as a result of which the Group is able to borrow even in challenging markets. It is also mitigated by keeping 
substantial liquidity at all times, which enables the Group to capitalise on any opportunities that may arise.
The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Group’s non derivative financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted 
cash flows :

Payable within 
1 year

Payable within 
2 - 5 years

More than 
5 years

Total

As at March 31, 2017

Borrowings 1045.38 3141.11 2629.26 6815.75

Trade payables 191.23  -    -   191.23

Unpaid dividend 8.15  -    -   8.15

Interest accrued but not due on 
borrowings

144.32  -    -   144.32

Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax 4.75  -    -   4.75

1393.83 3141.11 2629.26 7164.20

As at March 31, 2016

Borrowings 851.20 4231.93 675.80 5758.94

Trade payables 224.27  -    -   224.27

Unpaid dividend 9.98  -    -   9.98

Interest accrued but not due on 
borrowings

88.63  -    -   88.63

Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax 4.82  -    -   4.82

1178.90 4231.93 675.80 6086.64

As at April 1, 2015

Borrowings 1052.61 4650.23 769.48 6472.31

Trade payables 215.96  -    -   215.96

Unpaid dividend 6.58  -    -   6.58

Interest accrued but not due on 
borrowings

60.34  -    -   60.34

Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax 3.68  -    -   3.68

1339.17 4650.23 769.48 6758.87

(` in crores)
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note 43 : government grants

The Group receives government assistance in the form of SFIS/DFCEC Licenses, which are issued to eligible Indian service providers 
having free foreign exchange earnings. It can be utilised for duty-free imports of office & professional equipment, spares, furniture and 
consumables or any other items notified by the Government from time to time.

Following are the balances of SFIS / DFCEC Licenses held by the Group :

Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance  18.46  0.95

Add : Licenses received during the year  -  32.32

Less : Amount utilised during the year  (9.80)  (14.81)

Less : Amount lapsed during the year  (7.06)  -

Closing Balance  1.60  18.46

note 44 : corporate social responsibility (csr)

As part of its Corporate Social Responsibity, the Group has spent ` 9.59 crores for promoting education, knowledge enhancement and 
other activities during the current year (Previous Year : ` 6.75 crores)(Refer Note 33(q)).

note 45 : specified bank notes disclosure (sbns)

In accordance with the MCA notification G.S.R. 308 (E) dated March 30, 2017 details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) and Other Denomination 
Notes (ODNs) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016, are provided as under :

Particulars SBNs ODNs Total

Closing cash on hand as on November 8, 2016  514,500  267,545  782,045

Add : Permitted receipts  -  1,043,200  1,043,200

Less : Permitted payments  -  (1,128,863)  (1,128,863)

Less : Amounts deposited / exchanged with Banks  (514,500)  2,000  (512,500)

Closing cash on hand as on December 30, 2016 -  183,882  183,882

(` in crores)

(`)
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